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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE SIXTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT  

KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 

and THE CITY OF ELGIN, ILLINOIS, ) 

      ) 

Plaintiffs,   ) 

      ) 

  v.    ) NO. 10 CH 4151  

      ) 

ELIAS JUAREZ, SAUL JUAREZ, OSCAR ) 

SANCHEZ and RUBEN SANCHEZ, ) 

      ) 

  Defendants.   ) 

 

 

DEFENDANTS’ MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT AND REQUEST THAT 

SANCTIONS AND PENALTIES BE IMPOSED 

 

NOW COME Defendants, Elias Juarez, Saul Juarez, Oscar Sanchez, and Ruben Sanchez 

(“Defendants”), by their attorneys, Mauck & Baker, LLC, and move this Court for Summary 

Judgment for Rule 219 sanctions. Furthermore, in the course of supplemental discovery, 

Defendants discovered additional violations of the Illinois Supreme Court Rules which reinforce 

the conclusion that sanctions should be imposed on Plaintiffs, as well as several of their 

attorneys, one law firm, and the Kane County State’s Attorney’s Office for violations of Rules 

137, 213(i), 214(d), and 219(c). The Court should be aware that Defendants are not requesting 

monetary awards beyond the scope of the Appellate Court’s mandate, but these additional 

Supreme Court Rule violations emphasize the proprietary of awarding Rule 219 sanctions. 

INTRODUCTION 

 The Appellate Court remanded this case for the purpose of determining “when the City of 

Elgin and the State became (or should have become) aware of the purging of the gang roster, whether 

or not there was a Rule 213 violation, and, if so, whether Rule 219 sanctions are warranted.” 2019 IL 
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App (2d) 180610-U, ¶ 128. Defendants have issued supplemental discovery to determine when 

the Plaintiffs knew or should have known of the Defendants’ removal from the Elgin Police 

Department’s Gang Roster. Prior to this remand, the earliest date that could be deduced from the 

record was August 15, 2014 based on Officer Thomas Wolek’s testimony.
1
 However, newly 

disclosed emails now demonstrate that Plaintiffs knew or should have known of the Defendants’ 

removal from the Gang Roster no later than February 15, 2013.  

 This suit began in 2010 when Plaintiffs accused the Defendants of being members of the 

Latin Kings gang in violation of the Illinois Streetgang Terrorism Omnibus Prevention Act. The 

discovery violations being considered on remand stem from Plaintiffs’ answers to Defendants’ 

interrogatories at the start of these proceedings and the failure to supplement those answers. The 

Plaintiffs stated that each of Defendants was on the Elgin Police Department’s Gang Roster 

maintained by the Department’s Gang Crimes Unit. The Gang Roster, thus, served as the basis of 

the prosecution.  

However, the recently disclosed emails show that Plaintiffs’ knew that the Defendants were 

not on the Gang Roster as early as February 2013. Although the Circuit Court Judge ruled after 

trial in 2017 that Defendants were not affiliated with the Latin Kings gang, Defendants had to 

undergo four years of unnecessary litigation. 

One of the recently disclosed emails is dated February 15, 2013 from Officer James Lullo of 

the Elgin Police Department’s Gang Crimes Unit to Jody P. Gleason of the Kane County State’s 

Attorney’s Office. Exhibit A. The email asks that each of the four Defendants be “dropped from 

                                                
1  In his Initial Answers to Defendants’ Interrogatories, Officer Wolek stated Defendants were placed on the gang 

roster’s inactive list as of August 15, 2012. Exhibit J, at 2. In his deposition on March 4, 2013, Officer Wolek, 
testified that Defendants had been on the gang roster’s inactive list for “possibly at least a year.” Exhibit N, at 11. 

Wolek also testified in his March 4th, 2013 deposition that suspected gang members are removed from the gang 

roster’s inactive list after two years. Id. at 11. This meant—based on Wolek’s testimony and his answers to 

interrogatories—Defendants were placed on the inactive list beginning on August 15, 2012 (one year before the 

deposition of Wolek) and were completely removed from the Gang Roster no later than August 15, 2014. 
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the Civil Suit due to them, in the very near future, being removed from the Elgin Gang Roster 

and NCIC.” Id. The email further states, “[Defendants] have modified their behavior and no 

longer associate with Latin Kings.” Id. On February 19, 2013, Ms. Gleason forwarded the email 

to Christy DeChristopher, an assistant in the Kane County State’s Attorney's Office, stating the 

email was “For Joe.” Id. “Joe” is presumably Joseph McMahon, the Kane County State’s 

Attorney.  

A second email disclosed on remand, reveals the Plaintiffs’ intention to move forward with 

the lawsuit despite knowing Defendants were not affiliated with the gang. Exhibit B. Officer 

David Lesko states in an August 12, 2017 email that when Defendants filed their responses to the 

Plaintiffs’ 2010 complaint, the Gang Crimes Unit had meetings with Mr. McMahon and Ms. 

Gleason, asking that the suit against Defendants be dropped. Id. The email states that the Gang 

Crimes Unit was “told no” by Ms. Gleason and Mr. McMahon and that they “needed to go 

forward with the case against [Defendants].” Id. Officer Lesko’s email further states that the 

Gang Crimes Unit regularly purges gang members from the Gang Roster. Id.  

These two emails demonstrate that Plaintiffs were clearly informed that Defendants were not 

on the Gang Roster, and did not “actually and in fact belong to a gang.” 740 Ill. Comp. Stat. 

Ann. 147/10. Thus, in answer to the Appellate Court’s question on remand, this Court should 

conclusively rule that in February 2013 Plaintiffs knew or should have known the Defendants 

were removed from the Gang Roster. Also in answer to the Appellate Court’s mandate, Plaintiffs 

never supplemented their answers to the interrogatories to show Defendants being removed from 

the Gang Roster—a violation of Rule 213(i)’s duty to supplement their answers to 

interrogatories.  
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Furthermore, since being remanded by the Appellate Court, more violations of the Illinois 

Supreme Court Rules have been revealed. In addition to the violation of Rule 213(i) sanctions 

being considered for Plaintiffs’ failure to supplement their interrogatories, Plaintiffs should be 

sanctioned on three more grounds:    

1) Plaintiffs failed to supplement their answers to Defendants’ Document Production 

Requests, in violation of Rules 214(d) and 219(c);  

 

2) Plaintiffs failed to preserve copies of the Gang Roster despite their duty to preserve 

evidence, in violation of Rule 214(a) and 219(c); 

 

3) Plaintiffs continued to pursue a case that was not well grounded in fact, in violation of 

Rule 137. 

The first additional Supreme Court Rule violation—the violation of Rules 214 and 219—

regards the Plaintiffs’ failure to disclose the Gang Roster, emails, and other documents that 

demonstrate Defendants were not on the Gang Roster as late as February 2013. In their 

Document Production Requests, Defendants requested copies of the Gang Roster. Yet, Plaintiffs 

never disclosed any copies of the Gang Roster until discovery on remand, despite being required 

by the Illinois Supreme Court Rules on numerous occasions. See infra p. 12. In addition, 

Plaintiffs should have complied with their ongoing duty to supplement discovery and disclose 

the emails from Officers Lullo and Lesko.  

The second Supreme Court Rule violation—the violation of Rule 214’s duty to preserve 

evidence—is based on the Plaintiffs’ failure to preserve copies of the Gang Roster. In their recent 

response to Defendants’ interrogatory, Plaintiffs state in a three page answer that they only 

preserved three copies of the Gang Roster, from June 2009, January 2010, and August 2012. 

Exhibit C, at 3-6. Plaintiffs state all other copies of the Roster were deleted, destroyed, or lost. 

Id. This is a violation of the Rule 214 duty to preserve evidence. According to Shimanovsky v. 
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Gen. Motors Corp., a litigant “owes a duty to take reasonable measures to preserve the integrity 

of relevant and material evidence.” 181 Ill. 2d 112, 121 (1998). 

The last Supreme Court Rule violation—regarding Rule 137—is based on Plaintiffs pursuing 

a case that was “not well grounded in fact.”  The February 15, 2013 email from Officer Lullo 

demonstrates that the Plaintiffs and their attorneys in the initial trial proceedings knew that 

Defendants were not on the Gang Roster and were no longer members of the Latin Kings gang 

by February 2013. Despite the Elgin Police Department asking Plaintiffs to drop the suit against 

Defendants, Plaintiffs continued to prosecute Defendants through trial four years later.  

TIMELINE 

 To assist the court, the following is a timeline of events:  

1. On September 28, 2010, Plaintiffs filed suit against the four Defendants, accusing them 

of “actually and in fact” being a member of the Latin Kings gang. 

2. In June of 2011, numerous family members and friends of Defendants sent letters and 

other communications, testifying that Defendants were no longer affiliated with the Latin 

Kings gang. See Exhibit D for letters and photos.  

3. On February 14, 2012, each of the four Defendants served interrogatories and requests to 

produce documents on Plaintiffs in accordance with Rules 213 and 214. Exhibits E and 

F.  

4. On May 29, 2012, after multiple Rule 201(k) communications in April and May 2012, 

Defendants filed a Motion to Compel and Sanctions to require Plaintiffs to respond to 

Defendants’ discovery after Plaintiffs repeatedly disregarded Defendants’ discovery 

requests.  Exhibit G. 

5. On July 11, 2012, the Court granted the Motion to Compel and denied the request for 

sanctions, “pending [Plaintiffs’] compliance.” Exhibit H. 

6. On September 17, 2012, Defendants filed a second Motion for Sanctions due to 

Plaintiffs’ continued failure to produce discovery responses. Exhibit I. 

7. On September 28, 2012, with the second Motion for Sanctions pending, Plaintiffs replied 

with their answers to Defendants’ Interrogatories and Document Production Requests. 

Exhibits J and K.  In their answer to the Interrogatories, Plaintiffs stated Defendants 



6 

 

were on the Gang Roster’s inactive list as of August 15, 2012. Exhibit J, at 2. The 

Interrogatories also named eleven Elgin Police Officers who were to testify against 

Defendants. Id. 

8. On November 29, 2012, the Court imposed sanctions on the Plaintiffs for failing to 

comply with Defendants’ discovery requests and ordered that Plaintiffs’ attorneys, the 

Kane County State’s Attorney’s Office and Patrick J. Crimmins of Brady & Jensen, LLP, 

pay Defendants $3,000.00 in legal fees. Exhibit L.  

9. On February 15, 2013, Officer Lullo emails Kane County State’s Attorney Jody Gleason, 

stating that Defendants were about to be removed from the Gang Roster and asking that 

the case against Defendants be dropped. Exhibit A. 

10. On June 11, 2013, Plaintiffs issued their first supplemental discovery in filing their Rule 

213(f)(3) Answers to Interrogatories. Exhibit M. Plaintiffs did not disclose the February 

15, 2013 email from Officer Lullo or the Gang Roster. 

11. On March 4, 2013, in his deposition, Officer Wolek, Plaintiffs’ sole witness at trial, 

testified that Defendants were “inactive” on the Gang Roster for “possibly at least a 

year.” Exhibit N, at 11. Officer Wolek also testified that suspected gang members were 

removed from the gang roster’s inactive list after two years.  Id.  

12. On September 2, 2014, Plaintiffs issued their second supplemental answers to discovery, 

disclosing an additional eight witnesses who would testify “regarding their knowledge of 

the Latin Kings and Defendants involvement in the Latin King street gang.” Exhibit O. 

(These eight were different than the initially identified witnesses, see paragraph 7. Thus, 

the total number of potential witnesses was nineteen). Again, Plaintiffs did not disclose 

the February 15, 2013 email from Officer Lullo or the Gang Roster. 

13. On August 9, 2016, Plaintiffs filed a Motion to Quash Subpoena Duces Tecum after 

Defendants sought a copy of the Gang Roster. Exhibit P. 

14. On August 12, 2017, Officer David Lesko (who was named as potential witness by 

Plaintiffs) states in an email to Officer David Wolf (also named as a potential witness) 

and other officers that the Elgin Police Department’s Gang Crimes Unit had meetings 

around the time this suit was filed with Kane County State’s Attorneys Mr. McMahon 

and Ms. Gleason, asking that the suit against Defendants be dropped. Exhibit B.  

15. In December of 2017, after a five-day trial, the trial court found that none of the four 

Defendants were affiliated with the Latin Kings gang.  
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16. At the start of trial, Defendants filed a Motion in Limine to exclude the gang roster from 

trial as Defendants still did not have the document. Exhibit Q. However, the Court never 

ruled on the motion. 

17. On March 2, 2020, upon remand from the Appellate Court, Defendants issued subsequent 

set of discovery requests. 

18. On June 1, 2020, in response to Defendants’ interrogatory asking “As to each Defendant, 

identify the date when the Plaintiffs knew or should have known that the Defendants 

were removed from the Gang Roster[,]” Plaintiffs answered, “Elgin Police Department 

does not have a record of when Defendants were removed from the Gang Roster…” 

Exhibit C, at 3.  

19. Among the documents produced by Plaintiffs on June 1, 2020, was the February 15, 2013 

email from Officer Lullo and August 12, 2017 email from Officer Lesko. Exhibits A and 

B. 

20. Also in the documents produced by Plaintiffs on June 1, 2020 were following 

versions of the Elgin Police Department’s Gang Roster:  

 

a. June 16, 2009 – Each Defendant is marked as a member of the Latin 

Kings gang with an active status. Exhibit R, at 2, 4, 14, 20, 35-46. 

b. January 4, 2010 – Each Defendant is marked as a member of the Latin 

Kings gang with an active status. Id. at 53, 58. 

c. August 15, 2012 – Each Defendant is marked as a member of the Latin 

Kings gang with an inactive status. Id. at 61-62. 

d. March 4, 2020 – Each Defendant is marked as having no gang affiliation. 

Id. at 63-78. 

 

STANDARD OF REVIEW 

Summary judgment is proper when the record, viewed in the light most favorable to the non-

moving party, reveals that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and the moving party 

is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. 735 ILCS 5/2-1005(c). Where pleadings, depositions, 

and other evidence before court in motion for summary judgment show that at trial verdict would 

have to be directed, entry of summary judgment is proper. Kimbrough v. Jewel Companies Inc., 

92 Ill. App. 3d 813, 816-17 (1st Dist. 1981).  
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ARGUMENT  

I. Plaintiffs failed to supplement their answers to Defendants’ Interrogatories to show 

that Defendants were removed from the Gang Roster around February 15, 2013, in 

violation of Illinois Supreme Court Rules 213(i) and 219(c). 

The Appellate Court’s mandate can be broken down into three parts:  

1. When the Plaintiffs knew or should have known of the Defendants removal 

from the Gang Roster;  

 

2. Whether or not there was a Rule 213 violation; and  

 

3. Whether or not Rule 219 sanctions are warranted.  

The following addresses why each determination should be found in favor of Defendants.  

A. Plaintiffs knew or should have known of the Defendants removal from the Gang 

Roster around February 15, 2013. 

The February 15, 2013 email from Office Lullo demonstrates that the Plaintiffs knew or 

should have known that Defendants had modified their behavior and were no longer on the Gang 

Roster around February 2013. Exhibit A. The email was in the Plaintiffs’ attorneys’ possession 

as it was sent to the Kane County State’s Attorney’s Office, but the Plaintiffs proceeded—

obviously willfully—with the prosecution anyway. The August 12, 2017 email from Officer 

Lesko further demonstrates that members of the Gang Crimes Unit had meetings with attorneys 

of the Kane County State’s Attorney’s Office around the time the suit was filed, asking that the 

suit against Defendants be dropped. Exhibit B. They were told “no”. Id. 

These emails definitively show that Plaintiffs knew or should have known of the Defendants’ 

removal from the Gang Roster in February 2013 or soon after. However, even on this remand, 

Plaintiffs still equivocate. In their recent response to Defendants’ Interrogatory asking “when” 

Plaintiffs knew or should have known of Defendants’ removal—the precise question asked by 

the Appellate Court—Plaintiffs avoided the question by answering a different “when”: “Elgin 
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Police Department does not have a record of when Defendants were removed from the Gang 

Roster.” Exhibit C, at 3. Why cannot the Plaintiffs give a straight answer?  

B. Plaintiffs violated Rule 213(i) by failing to supplement their interrogatories to 

reflect Defendants’ removal from the gang roster. 

Rule 213(i) states that a party “has a duty to seasonably supplement or amend any prior 

answer or response whenever new or additional information subsequently becomes known to that 

party.” In their responses to Defendants’ initial interrogatories, Plaintiffs stated that each of the 

Defendants were on the Gang Roster. Exhibit J, at 2. It is undisputed that the Plaintiffs never 

supplemented their discovery responses to inform Defendants that they were removed from 

Elgin’s gang roster. Rule 213 explicitly requires parties to supplement their discovery responses. 

Therefore, the Plaintiffs’ failure to supplement their answers to the interrogatories violated that 

rule.   

C. Plaintiffs’ failure to supplement warrants Rule 219 Sanctions. 

Rule 219(c) provides that if a party “unreasonably fails to comply with any provision of 

[Rules 201-230]. . . The court, upon motion or upon its own initiative, may impose upon 

offending party or his or her attorney, or both, an appropriate sanction, which may include an 

order to pay to the other party or parties the amount of reasonable expenses incurred as a result 

of the misconduct, including a reasonable attorney fee, and when the misconduct is willful, a 

monetary penalty.” (Emphasis added). 

 In this case, the Plaintiffs’ failure to notify the Defendants of their removal from the Gang 

Roster warrants sanctions. Our nation is now engaged in a serious debate over police abuse with 

racial minorities. Although no life was lost as was the case in the police misconduct involving 

George Floyd, the abuse of government power here is also egregious: 
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1. Patrick Crimmins of Jensen & Brady, LLP and the Kane County State’s Attorney’s 

Office knew their duties under the Rules of the Illinois Supreme Court as well as their 

burden of proof under the Illinois Streetgang Terrorism Omnibus Prevention Act. 

 

2. The failure to notify Defendants of their removal from the Gang Roster was not 

accidental. The Plaintiffs’ motion to quash the Defendants’ attempt to obtain the 

Gang Roster shows that their actions were deliberate and willful. Exhibit P. 

 

3. The failure to notify Defendants was not momentary or later rectified. The abuse of 

power did not last eight minutes as it did for George Floyd, but almost eight years for 

Hispanic young men.  

 

4. The decision to continue prosecution involved several lawyers including Joseph 

McMahon, Jody Gleason, and special counsel Patrick Crimmins. Officer Lesko’s 

email shows that the decision to continue the prosecution after the Defendants’ 

removal from the Gang Roster was a group decision. Exhibit B.  

 

5. Plaintiffs asserted that they had nineteen witnesses who had knowledge of 

Defendants’ gang affiliation or would otherwise testify on behalf of the State. Yet, at 

trial, Plaintiffs only called Officer Wolek to testify. Why did they not call Officers 

Lullo or Lesko?  

 

6. An examination of the record and the discovery sanctions of $3,000 imposed by the 

Circuit Court (Exhibit L) support the conclusion that the Plaintiffs’ conduct was part 

of a larger pattern of willfulness, delay, and deceit.  

 

 In answer to the Appellate Court’s mandate to determine if Rule 219 sanctions are 

appropriate, these six points make clear that, yes, they are. Certainly legal fees incurred by 

Defendants from February 2013 to the completion of litigation are appropriate. If the case had 

been dismissed in 2013, none of the Defendants’ subsequent legal expenses would have been 

incurred.  

 Furthermore, Rule 219(c) authorizes the Court to impose a penalty for the Plaintiffs’ 

misconduct, if it is willful. Each of the above six points strongly support the argument that the 

actions of the attorneys and the law firm involved were considered, discussed, and deliberately 

taken. Monetary penalties are also appropriate because not only did the Plaintiffs’ actions burden 
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Defendants and their counsel, but they also created an enormous expense and waste of time for 

the Circuit and Appellate Courts.  

 What is an appropriate amount of the penalty? A penalty under Rule 219(c) “should be 

proportionate to the gravity of the violation.” Cty. Line Nurseries & Landscaping, Inc., ex rel. 

Bankr. Tr. v. Glencoe Park Dist., 2015 IL App (1st) 143776, ¶ 42. Due to Plaintiffs’ attorneys’ 

constant delay and deceit, Defendants contend the penalty should be in the amount of attorneys’ 

fees paid to special counsel Patrick Crimmins and Jensen & Brady, LLP from the time the 

lawsuit should have been dropped in February 2013. Through additional discovery requests 

which this Court has stayed at this time, Defendants have requested information from Plaintiffs 

on the amount of legal fees paid to Patrick Crimmins and Jensen & Brady, LLP regarding these 

four Defendants from February 2013 and on. For those attorneys to have retained those fees 

given their knowledge that they had no evidence of Defendants’ gang membership is a grave 

injustice.  

 In Defendants’ view, the liability asserted should be joint and several against both Plaintiffs, 

the attorneys in the Kane County State’s Attorney’s Office, including Joe McMahon and Jody 

Gleason, and Patrick Crimmins and the law firm of Jensen and Brady, LLP. They are best able to 

determine amongst themselves which of them should bear what portion of the penalty and 

sanctions, or whether it is a matter for their clients or malpractice carriers.  

II. Plaintiffs and their attorneys failed to disclose the emails from Officers Lullo and 

Lesko, copies of the Gang Roster, and other documents in violation of Illinois Supreme 

Court Rules 214(d) and 219(c). 

Rule 214(a) provides that “Any party may by written request direct any other party to 

produce for inspection, copying, reproduction photographing, testing or sampling 

specified documents…” Furthermore, Rule 214(d) specifies that a “party has a duty to 
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seasonably supplement any prior response to the extent of documents, objects or tangible 

things which subsequently come into that party's possession or control or become known 

to that party.”  

Plaintiffs violated their duties to disclose requested documents and supplement their 

discovery requests in two ways: 1) the continued failure to disclose copies of the Gang 

Roster; and 2) the failure to supplement their answers to disclose the February 15, 2013 

email from Officer Lullo. 

A. Plaintiffs failed to disclose copies of the Gang Roster.  

 

Throughout these proceedings, Defendants have repeatedly sought copies of the Gang 

Roster. Defendants explicitly requested copies of the Gang Roster in their initial discovery 

requests. Exhibit F, Request # 11 (“All ‘Gang Lists’ or lists in Plaintiffs’ possession which list 

the names of persons whom Plaintiffs believe to be Latin King gang members.”). Yet, Plaintiffs 

refused to turn over the Gang Roster on numerous occasions, including:  

1. On September 28, 2012 when Plaintiffs gave their initial answers to Defendants’ 

discovery requests. Exhibits J and K. 

 

2. On June 11, 2013 when Plaintiffs supplemented their answers to Defendants’ 

discovery requests. Exhibit M. 

 

3. On September 2, 2014 when Plaintiffs again supplemented their answers to 

Defendants’ discovery requests. Exhibit O. 

 

4. On July 22, 2016, when Plaintiffs were served with a subpoena from Defendants 

specifically asking for the Gang Roster. Instead of releasing the Roster, Plaintiffs 

filed a Motion to Quash Subpoena Duces Tecum. Exhibit P. 

 

5. In December 2017 at the start of trial when Defendants filed a Motion in Limine to 

exclude the gang roster from trial. Exhibit Q. 

 

Finally, in discovery on this remand, Plaintiffs disclosed versions of the Gang Roster 

from June 2009, January 2010, August 2012, and March 2020, respectively. All other 
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copies of the Gang Roster, according to Plaintiffs’ Interrogatories, were deleted or 

destroyed. Exhibit C, at 3-6. It was not until ten years of litigation and on this remand, 

that Defendants were finally able to receive a small portion of the Gang Roster on which 

the Plaintiffs had based their case. Exhibit R.  

B. Plaintiffs failed to disclose the February 15, 2013 email from Officer Lullo and 

the August 12, 2017 email from Officer Lesko.  

Defendants submitted their initial discovery requests in February 2012 requesting: 

“All documents which in any way reflect communications between Plaintiffs, or any 

employees, agents, officers or independent contractors of Plaintiffs regarding this 

individual [Defendant].” Exhibit F, at Request # 8; see also Requests # 11 and 15. 

Plaintiffs supplemented their discovery twice, on June 11, 2013 and September 2, 2014. 

Exhibits M and O. Yet the emails from Officer Lullo or Officer Lesko were never 

disclosed until discovery on this remand.  

C. Plaintiffs’ failures to disclose the Gang Roster and emails from Officers Lullo 

and Lesko warrant Rule 219 Sanctions. 

 As discussed above, Rule 219 states that the court can issue sanctions for discovery 

violations, and in the case where the misconduct is willful, a monetary penalty. The failure to 

allow Defendants to see the Gang Roster has implications beyond this affecting our national 

identity and values. Defendants could not examine the date or reasons they were put on the Gang 

Roster.  

 Defendant Saul Juarez signed an affidavit that he was never a Latin King. Exhibit D, at 9. 

Why was he put on it? Was the only reason that his brother was also on it? Perhaps the Gang 

Roster would have notes that explained his inclusion. Perhaps the Gang Roster had exonerating 

information, such as his cooperation with the Gang Crimes Unit; or when he went to the local 

junior high to warn young people about the street gangs; or when they risked their lives to march 
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against the gang activity. Id. What about the other defendants (roughly eighty individuals) in this 

case? Were they shown the Roster? If the Gang Roster had been furnished, Defendants would 

have known exactly when they were removed. Disclosing Officer Lullo’s February 2013 email 

would have also sufficed.  Therefore, in addition to Plaintiffs’ failure to supplement their 

interrogatories under Rule 213(i), Rule 219 sanctions should also be imposed on Plaintiffs for 

their failure to disclose the Gang Roster and February 2013 email from Officer Lullo in violation 

of 214(d).  

III. Plaintiffs and their attorneys failed to preserve copies of the Gang Roster in violation of 

their duty under Illinois Supreme Court Rules 214 and 219. 

As discussed above, Defendants explicitly requested copies of the Gang Roster in their initial 

discovery requests and even issued a subpoena to the Plaintiffs to turn over the Gang Roster. 

Exhibit F, Request 11; Exhibit P. Yet, according to the Plaintiffs’ Answers to Defendants’ 

Interrogatories on this remand, Plaintiffs only preserved four copies of the Gang Roster 

respectively from June 2009, January 2010, August 2012, and March 2020. Exhibit R. All other 

copies of the Gang Roster and related information were destroyed, deleted, or lost. Id. 

Failure to preserve evidence prevents the liberal discovery that is required under Rule 214’s 

duty to disclose requested documents. Shimanovsky, 181 Ill. 2d 112, 121 (1998). When a party 

allows for the loss or destruction of evidence, courts may issue sanctions under Rule 219(c), 

including payment of attorneys’ fees and monetary penalties. Id. at 123.  

Despite the Plaintiffs relying on the Gang Roster as the basis of their prosecution (Exhibit J, 

at 2), Plaintiffs did not take measures to preserve copies of the Gang Roster. If the Gang Roster 

had been preserved, Defendants would have been able to confirm when they were no longer 

considered to be gang members by the State, and could have moved for dismissal of the charges. 

Yet, due to Plaintiffs’ misconduct, Defendants had to undergo years of unnecessary litigation. 
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This is not a victimless action. The Defendants’ listings on the Gang Roster may have caused 

them to be rejected for employment promotion, new jobs, apartment leases, mortgage 

applications, or cause them to incur bad credit rating or other libels against their character. These 

are serious injuries which may have harmed Defendants without their knowledge. 

IV. Plaintiffs and their attorneys knew after receiving the February 15, 2013 email from 

Officer Lullo that their suit was not well grounded in fact, in violation of Illinois 

Supreme Court Rule 137. 

Plaintiffs had a duty to ensure that their cause of action was well grounded in fact. Rule 137 

provides, in relevant part: 

The signature of an attorney or party constitutes a certificate by him that he has 

read the pleading, motion or other paper; that to the best of his knowledge, 

information, and belief formed after reasonable inquiry it is well grounded in 

fact. . . . If a pleading, motion, or other paper is signed in violation of this rule, the 

court, upon motion or upon its own initiative, may impose upon the person who 

signed it, a represented party, or both, an appropriate sanction, which may include 

an order to pay to the other party or parties the amount of reasonable expenses 

incurred because of the filing of the pleading, motion or other paper, including a 

reasonable attorney fee. (emphasis added). 

 

 Illinois courts have held that “Rule 137 contains an implicit requirement that an attorney 

promptly dismiss a lawsuit once it becomes evident that it is unfounded. A violation of this 

continuing duty of inquiry is sanctionable.” Rankin ex rel. Heidlebaugh v. Heidlebaugh, 321 Ill. 

App. 3d 255, 267 (2001). Plaintiffs and their attorneys had an ongoing responsibility to ensure 

that their claims were well grounded in fact. However, the February 15, 2013 email (Exhibit A) 

shows that the Plaintiffs and at least two of their attorneys knew that the claims they prosecuted 

through trial were not backed up by the City of Elgin’s own Police Department’s Gang Crimes 

Unit.  

 Under the Illinois Streetgang Terrorism Omnibus Prevention Act, Plaintiffs had the burden to 

prove each element of their claims against each of the four defendants. See People v. Lozano, 
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2017 IL App (1st) 142723 ¶ 31. Furthermore, Plaintiffs had the burden to prove by a 

preponderance of the evidence that each of the four defendants is a “Street gang member,” which 

the Act expressly defines as a “person who actually and in fact belongs to a gang.” 740 Ill. 

Comp. Stat. Ann. 147/10 (emphasis added).  What the February 2013 email makes clear is that 

the attorneys knew no later than February 2013 that none of the Defendants were on the Gang 

Roster and were not “actually and in fact” a “street gang member.”  

 Yet, instead of dropping the case, Plaintiffs doubled down in their prosecution, litigating as if 

they had evidence of Defendants’ gang affiliation by disclosing nineteen witnesses that could be 

called at trial. In their initial answers to Defendants’ Interrogatories, Plaintiffs had disclosed 

eleven controlled witnesses, all members of the Elgin Police Department to testify against 

Defendants. Exhibit J. At least three of the Plaintiffs’ controlled witnesses knew Defendants 

were not on the Gang Roster or were part of the Latin Kings gang: Officer Lullo who sent the 

February 15, 2013 email, and Officers Wolek and Jeffrey P. Adams who were copied on that 

email. Exhibits A and E. The Plaintiffs included these officers as controlled witnesses, asserting 

that they might be put forth to testify as to Defendants’ supposed gang affiliation 

 In 2014, after Plaintiffs knew that Defendants were no longer on the Gang Roster, Plaintiffs 

disclosed eight more lay witnesses who were to testify “regarding their knowledge of the Latin 

Kings and Defendants involvement in the Latin King street gang.” Exhibit O, at 2. Plaintiffs 

never produced any documentary evidence that would specifically identify the subject matter of 

these witnesses’ testimony. Of the nineteen witnesses, only Officer Wolek testified at trial. 

Plaintiffs continued to prosecute Defendants under the guise of a substantive case, but in reality, 

they had no factual basis for their claims. Such actions warrant Rule 137 sanctions. 
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CONCLUSION 

WHEREFORE, for the reasons stated above, Defendants request that this Court: 

1. Issue a judgment that Plaintiffs knew or should have known by February 15, 2013 that 

Defendants were removed from the Gang Roster and knew that Defendants had modified 

and their behavior that they were not “actually and in fact members” of a street gang. 

 

2. Rule that Plaintiffs violated Rule 213(i) by failure to supplement discovery with the 

February 15, 2013 email from Sergeant Lullo and the August 12, 2017 email from 

Officer Lesko. 

 

3. Rule that Plaintiffs violated Rules 214(d) by failing to furnish a copy of the Gang Roster 

initially and on numerous occasions. 

 

4. Rule that the violations by Plaintiffs of Rules 213(i) and 214(d) were willful. 

 

5. Rule that Plaintiffs violated Rule 137 by continuing this litigation after February 13, 2013 

when they knew that their case was no longer “well grounded in fact.” 

 

6. Under Rule 219(c), award sanctions in favor of Defendants against both Plaintiffs, the 

State of Illinois and the City of Elgin, and against Kane County as principal as a result of 

the actions of its agent, the Kane County State’s Attorney’s Office, and against Patrick 

Crimmins, Jensen & Brady, LLP, Jody P. Gleason, and Joseph McMahon for violations 

of Rules 213(i), 214(d) and 137. The amount of the sanction should be all reasonable 

attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses incurred by Defendants since February 13, 2013. The 

liability of the award should be joint and several against all of the aforementioned entities 

and counsel. Defendants should be directed to submit a fee petition and Plaintiffs should 

be ordered to inform all parties not currently participating in the litigation of the Court’s 

order allowing them to show cause why they should not be accountable.  

 

7. Award a monetary penalty against each of the entities being sanctioned for the 

willfulness of their violations in the amount of the attorneys’ fees paid to Patrick 

Crimmins, Jensen & Brady, LLP, or others for the prosecution of this case. 

 

8. Grant other just relief.  

 

Dated: July 28, 2020    Respectfully submitted, 

 

ELIAS JUAREZ, SAUL JUAREZ, 

OSCAR SANCHEZ and RUEBEN SANCHEZ 
 

 

By: /s/ John W. Mauck    

       John W. Mauck 
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John W. Mauck 

Sorin A. Leahu 

Andrew S. Willis  

MAUCK & BAKER, LLC  

One N. LaSalle Street, Suite 600  

Chicago, Illinois 60602  

Telephone: (312) 726-1243  

jmauck@mauckbaker.com 

sleahu@mauckbaker.com  

awillis@mauckbaker.com  
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EXHIBIT A 



From: Gleason, Jody
To: DeChristopher, Christy
Subject: FW: Latin King Suit
Date: Tuesday, February 19, 2013 8:45:31 AM
Attachments: image001.png

 
For Joe

From: James M. Lullo [mailto:LULLO_J@cityofelgin.org] 
Sent: Friday, February 15, 2013 6:45 PM
To: Gleason, Jody
Cc: Thomas P. Wolek; Jeffrey P. Adam; Ana Z. Lalley
Subject: Latin King Suit
 

Jody,
 
Here are the four(4) Latin Kings that we want dropped from
the Civil Suit due to them, in the very near future, being
removed from the Elgin Gang Roster and NCIC. They have
modified their behavior and no longer associate with Latin
Kings.
 

1.Reuben and Oscar Sanchez
2.Elias and Saul Juarez

 
Thanks Jim
 
Sgt James Lullo #186
Elgin Police Department
Gang Crimes Unit
Office (847) 289-2646
Cell (847) 833-8108 
Fax (847) 289-2690
lullo j@cityofelgin.org

 
 

This message, including any attachments, is the property of the City of Elgin. It may be legally privileged and/or confidential and is
intended only for the use of the intended recipient(s). No recipient should forward, print, copy, or otherwise reproduce this message in
any manner that would allow it to be viewed by any individual not originally listed as a recipient. If the reader of this message is not the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any unauthorized disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or the taking of any
action in reliance on the information herein is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please immediately
notify the sender and delete this message.

Due to the nature of the Internet, the sender is unable to ensure the integrity of this message and does not accept any liability or
respons bility for any errors or omissions (whether as the result of this message having been intercepted or otherwise) in the contents of
this message.

Any views expressed in this communication are those of the individual sender, except where the sender specifically states them to be the
views of the city.

SAO-EPD2143



 

 

EXHIBIT B 



From: David W. Lesko
To: Bill Wolf
Cc: Colin Fleury; Adam T. Schuessler; Jeffrey A. Swoboda
Subject: Re: 10 CH 4151 People of the State of IL v. Latin Kings
Date: Saturday, August 12, 2017 12:28:49 PM

I want to make sure everyone understands what happened. These four were documented
members of the Latin Kings at the time the civil injunction was filed in 2010.  During the
seven years it took to get to trial the GCU noted that they were becoming inactive members.
 When the four filed their response to the injunction there were meetings held with Joe
McMahon and Jody Gleason where the GCU stated they should be dropped from the
injunction.  We were told no and that we needed to go forward with the case against them.
There have been many issues with how our attorney has handled the civil injunction against
the Latin Kings and it's why we changed our attorney for the next two.  In regards to purges,
we do purge gang members on a regular basis and have completed purges on several gangs in
2017.  

Sent from my iPhone

On Aug 12, 2017, at 10:19 AM, Bill Wolf <Wolf_B@cityofelgin.org> wrote:

This is a good reminder to continue our diligence in purging people from the list and
making sure the people designated in the civil suits are currently active.
 

From: William Cogley 
Sent: Saturday, August 12, 2017 9:38 AM
To: Rick Kozal; Jeffrey A. Swoboda; Bill Wolf; Mike Gehrman; Christopher Beck
Subject: Fwd: 10 CH 4151 People of the State of IL v. Latin Kings
 
Gentlemen 
 
FYI. 
 
Bill

William A. Cogley
Corporation Counsel
City of Elgin
150 Dexter Court
Elgin, Il 60120
(847)931-5659
(847)931-5665(facsimile)
cogley_w@cityofelgin.org

Begin forwarded message:

From: Patrick Crimmins <crimmins@bradylaw.com>
Date: August 11, 2017 at 9:59:03 PM CDT
To: William Cogley <Cogley_W@cityofelgin.org>

SAO-EPD2153



Subject: Fwd: 10 CH 4151 People of the State of IL v. Latin
Kings

FYI. 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Patrick Crimmins <crimmins@bradylaw.com>
Date: August 11, 2017 at 5:13:04 PM CDT
To: Joseph Lulves <LulvesJoseph@co.kane.il.us>
Subject: Fwd: 10 CH 4151 People of the State of IL v.
Latin Kings

Joe:
We lost our trial. He just did not think we had enough to
establish these four as Kings at time of filing and at time
of trial. He found our expert credible and reasonable. 
Please review the Court's ruling. 
The EPD is aware. 
Please advise. 
Thanks. 
Patrick 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Akerlow, Debi"
<AkerlowDebi@co.kane.il.us>
Date: August 11, 2017 at 4:19:12 PM CDT
To: Patrick Crimmins
<crimmins@bradylaw.com>
Subject: 10 CH 4151 People of the State
of IL v. Latin Kings

Good Afternoon Pat,
 
The attached order has been filed. I apologize
for the number of files, it would not scan as
one document.
 
Please forward to opposing counsel.
 
Let me know if I can be of any further
assistance.
 
Best Regards,

SAO-EPD2154



Debi Akerlow
Judicial Assistant
630-232-3441
 
 
 

<Pg1-5.7.pdf>

<Pg6.pdf>

SAO-EPD2155
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE 16TH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 
KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ) Gen. No. 10 CH 4151 
and THE CITY OF ELGIN, ILLINOIS, ) 
       ) 
 Plaintiffs,     ) 
       ) 
v.       ) 
       ) 
ELIAS JUAREZ, SAUL JUAREZ, OSCAR ) 
SANCHEZ, and RUBEN SANCHEZ,  ) 
       ) 
 Defendants.     ) 
 
 

PLAINTIFFS’ ANSWER TO DEFENDANTS’ MARCH 2, 2020 
INTERROGATORIES 

 
 NOW COMES Plaintiffs, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS and THE 
CITY OF ELGIN, ILLINOIS, by and through their attorney, KANE COUNTY 
STATE’S ATTORNEY JOSEPH H. MCMAHON, through his Assistant, Megan L. 
Baxter, and hereby presents the following Answer to Defendants’ March 2, 2020 
Interrogatories: 
 

1. State the name and address of each individual who assisted in answering 
these interrogatories. 

 
ANSWER: 
 
Detective Tom Wolek 
Elgin Police Department 
 
Sergeant James Lalley 
Elgin Police Department 
 
Officer Elias Acevedo 
Elgin Police Department 
 
Officer Greg Wilson 
Elgin Police Department 
 
Officer Kevin Sosnowski 
Elgin Police Department 
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Patrick Crimmins 
Special Assistant State’s Attorney, Trial Proceedings 
Kane County State’s Attorney’s Office 
 
All persons listed may be contacted through the Kane County State’s Attorney’s 
Office. 
 
2. Identify the dates each Defendant was placed on the Gang Roster. 

 
ANSWER:  Objection, relevance and beyond the scope. Plaintiffs strenuously 
object to Defendants’ attempts to obtain irrelevant information beyond the scope 
of the Appellate Court’s mandate.  The placement of Defendants on the Gang 
Roster is not relevant to when Plaintiffs knew or should have known the four 
Defendants were removed from the gang roster.  Additionally, three of the four 
Defendants have admitted their gang membership and did not contest that issue 
at trial.  Nevertheless, in order to provide the most information possible, 
Plaintiffs make the following response: See answer to Interrogatory No. 5 from 
Plaintiffs’ Answer to Defendants’ Interrogatories tendered September 28, 2012, 
produced with this response as SAO-EPD 0017-0048. See also answers to 
Interrogatory No. 6 and Document Requests No. 2 and No. 3. 
 
3. As to each Defendant, identify which, if any, of the eleven criteria testified to 

by Officer Wolek in his March 4, 2013 deposition, Exhibit A at 7:7, the 
Plaintiffs relied on to list such Defendant on the Gang Roster. 

 
ANSWER: Objection, relevance and beyond the scope. Plaintiffs strenuously 
object to Defendants’ attempts to obtain irrelevant information beyond the scope 
of the Appellate Court’s mandate.  The criteria for placement of Defendants on 
the Gang Roster is not relevant to when Plaintiffs knew or should have known 
the four Defendants were removed from the gang roster.  Additionally, three of 
the four Defendants have admitted their gang membership and did not contest 
that issue at trial.  Nevertheless, in order to provide the most information 
possible, Plaintiffs make the following response: See answers to Interrogatory 
No. 6, Interrogatory No. 11, Document Requests No. 2 and No. 3, Deposition 
Testimony of Detective Tom Wolek, March 4, 2013, SAO-EPD 1568-1625, 
Detective Tom Wolek’s Trial Testimony from January 20, 2017 and January 31, 
2017, SAO-EPD 1626-1892.  See also Affidavits of Detective Tom Wolek, 
Affidavits of Defendants, and Detective Wolek’s Deposition Exhibit #5 Summary 
for Saul Juarez, and Summaries and Drafts of Gang Membership for all 
Defendants, SAO-EPD 1417-1474. 
 
4. As to each Defendant, state how the Defendant was added to the Gang Roster 

and what the procedure was for adding individuals to the Gang Roster at the 
time the Defendants were added. 
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ANSWER: Objection, relevance and beyond the scope. Plaintiffs strenuously 
object to Defendants’ attempts to obtain irrelevant information beyond the scope 
of the Appellate Court’s mandate.  The procedure for placement on the Gang 
Roster is not relevant to when Plaintiffs knew or should have known the four 
Defendants were removed from the gang roster.  Additionally, three of the four 
Defendants have admitted their gang membership and did not contest that issue 
at trial.  Nevertheless, in order to provide the most information possible, 
Plaintiffs make the following response:  See answers Document Request No. 2, 
No. 3, No. 6, No. 7, No. 8, and No. 9.  Additionally, see answers to Interrogatory 
No. 2, No. 6, No. 11, and No. 16, Deposition Testimony of Detective Tom Wolek, 
March 4, 2013, SAO-EPD 1568-1625, Detective Tom Wolek’s Trial Testimony 
from January 20, 2017 and January 31, 2017, SAO-EPD 1626-1892.  See also 
Affidavits of Detective Tom Wolek, Affidavits of Defendants, and Detective 
Wolek’s Deposition Exhibit #5 Summary for Saul Juarez, and Summaries and 
Drafts of Gang Membership for all Defendants, SAO-EPD 1417-1474. 
 
5. As to each Defendant, identify the date when the Plaintiffs knew or should 

have known that the Defendants were placed on inactive status on the Gang 
Roster. 

 
ANSWER:  See answers to Interrogatory No. 6 and Document Request No. 4 and 
SAO-EPD 1566-1567. 
 
6. As to each Defendant, identify the date when the Plaintiffs knew or should 

have known that the Defendants were removed from the Gang Roster. 
 

ANSWER: Elgin Police Department does not have a record of when Defendants 
were removed from the Gang Roster.  As an explanation, see the following: 
 
Gang rosters or lists of gang members were transferred into the Elgin Police 
Department digital records system in 2012.  No paper copies of gang rosters, 
lists, or other documents were maintained, other than as outlined below.  The 
digitized gang rosters from 2012-present are maintained via software called Law 
Enforcement Records Management System (“LERMS”), also known as “New 
World”.   
 
For a short period of time, prior to the digitalization of gang unit intelligence, 
and in conjunction with the paper files, which are no longer maintained, a 
software system called “Intelligence Tracking System,” was used. Elgin Police 
Department had two computers with licenses for the software that an analyst 
and the officer assigned intel used. The officer assigned intel used the paper files 
and duplicated everything on the software. The software and paper files were 
used simultaneously and contained the same information.  Printouts of lists of 
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gang members and their individual profiles from the Intelligence Tracking 
System software were made and kept in a binder.  One copy of the binder with 
printouts from 2009 and 2010 was maintained related to this lawsuit. No other 
printouts or paper copies of files were maintained.  See Document Request No. 3 
and SAO-EPD 1475-1534. 
 
In 2012, all of the information from the paper files and “Intelligence Tracking 
System” was transferred and digitized into the gang module for the Latin Kings 
on LERMS/New World. Elgin Police Department no longer has the files or access 
to the “Intelligence Tracking System” software.  During the digitalization 
process, paper files and gang information from LEADS and the Intelligence 
Tracking System software were turned into digital files and captioned “Legacy 
Gang Information” in order to import or transfer the information from those 
sources into LERMS/New World.  Printouts of “Legacy Gang Information” in 
paper form were kept and maintained related to this lawsuit.  Copies of 
handwritten/typed gang contact cards and gang information forms were 
maintained related to this lawsuit for Saul Juarez. Additionally, printouts from 
LEADS with gang information for Defendants, and from a Chicago Police 
Department database that Elgin Police Department has access to called 
“CLEAR” were also maintained in paper form. See Document Request No. 3 and 
SAO-EPD 1535-1565. No other printouts, paper copies, or access to these 
“Legacy Gang Information” files, gang contact cards, gang information forms, 
LEADS gang information printouts, or “CLEAR” database printouts remains 
other than what is tendered with this response. 
 
The LERMS/New World software is the current universal records management 
system of the Elgin Police Department.  A gang indicator marker is present for 
each individual who has been identified as a gang member on that individual’s 
“Global Subject Activity Report,” which is a compilation of all information the 
Elgin Police Department has about an individual, including, but not limited to, 
name, address, identifiers, physical description, including tattoos and scars, etc.  
This information is maintained on the “Global Subject Activity Report,” or 
individual’s profile within LERMS/New World.    
 
Specialized tabs or modules within the “Global Subject Activity Report,” or 
profile can be accessed if certain indicator markers are made for an individual.  
If an indicator marker is checked on an individual’s profile/”Global Subject 
Activity Report” for gang membership, a tab or module for gang membership is 
accessible to record information related to Elgin Police Department gang 
intelligence about that individual, including their status as active or inactive.  
The gang module contains information on an individual’s gang contacts, similar 
to the information which would have previously been contained on handwritten 
or typed gang-contact cards.  Once the indicator marker of identified gang 
membership has been removed from an individual’s “Global Subject Activity 
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Report” profile, the entirety of the gang module information for that individual is 
deleted and no information previously contained in the gang module related to 
that individual remains.  The information is deleted and never can be recovered.  
No historical data remains to indicate the individual ever had the gang indicator 
marker, when the gang indicator marker was first checked, when it was 
removed, or if the individual ever had information saved in the gang module.   
 
For the four Defendants, the gang indicator marker on their “Global Subject 
Activity Report,” has been unchecked or removed, and therefore any information 
about gang membership, including historical data of when the gang indicator 
marker was removed or removal of identified gang membership from the “Global 
Subject Activity Report,” no longer exists.  No information is saved related to 
each individuals “Gang Affiliation”.  See Document Request No. 2 and SAO-EPD 
0001-0016.   
 
Because the Elgin Police Department system does not contain historical data 
related to dates corresponding to deletion of the gang indicator marker and gang 
module, Plaintiffs have attempted to re-trace historical data in a different way.  
When the demarcation and gang module is deleted from an individual’s profile, 
that same information is requested to be removed from the State of Illinois 
database, the Law Enforcement Agencies Data System (“LEADS”).  Similarly, 
when an individual is moved from active status to inactive status, a request is 
made to update the LEADS gang entry for that individual. This request is made 
either verbally or in writing to the staff which maintains LEADS records at the 
Elgin Police Department.  Records of these requests are not routinely kept, 
although, a record of the date for which the four Defendants were moved from 
active to inactive status was kept in relation to this litigation.  This document is 
a dispatch printout from when LEADS was updated with the Defendants’ 
inactive status. See answer to Document Request No. 4 and SAO-EPD 1566-
1567. No other records related to the request(s) for removal of these four 
Defendants, if they existed, were kept or remain.   
 
Plaintiffs have been in communication with multiple persons at the Illinois State 
Police (“ISP”) on several occasions since receiving these requests to determine 
whether historical data on the date of removal of gang membership from LEADS 
exists for these four Defendants.  Plaintiffs have not received a definitive 
answer, only that administrators at ISP would attempt to see if this was possible 
from the State’s Department of Innovation and Technology (“DoIT”). As of the 
date of this Answer, Plaintiffs have not received a response from DoIT or ISP.  
Investigation continues. 
 
See also Plaintiffs’ Motion to Quash Subpoena Duces Tecum, SAO-EPD 1893-
1901, Arguments on Motions in Limine, Trial Transcript of January 10, 2017, 
SAO-EPD 1902-1949, Deposition Testimony of Detective Tom Wolek, March 4, 
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2013, SAO-EPD 1568-1625, and Detective Tom Wolek’s Trial Testimony from 
January 20, 2017 and January 31, 2017, SAO-EPD 1626-1892. 
 
7. State whether Officer Wolek’s testimony at his deposition, referred to in 

Interrogatory 5, is complete and accurate.  If Officer Wolek’s testimony 
referenced in Interrogatory 5 is incomplete or inaccurate, explain which 
statement or statements are incomplete or inaccurate and provide the reason 
for the incompleteness or inaccuracy. 

 
ANSWER: Interrogatory No. 5 does not contain a reference to Detective Wolek’s 
deposition testimony.  If Interrogatory No. 7 was meant to refer to Interrogatory 
No. 3, Plaintiffs make the following answer:  Detective Wolek’s deposition 
testimony is complete and accurate in its entirety, including passages 
referenced, when taken in context with the whole.  See Deposition Testimony of 
Detective Tom Wolek, March 4, 2013, SAO-EPD 1568-1625. 
 
8. State why each Defendant was reclassified from active to inactive status on 

Gang Roster. 
 
ANSWER: See answer to Interrogatory No. 6.  Defendants were each removed 
when they no longer exhibited any of the 11 criteria for gang membership for an 
approximately 2-year period until moved to inactive status, and from then no 
longer exhibited any of the 11 criteria for another approximately 2-year period.  
See Deposition Testimony of Detective Tom Wolek, March 4, 2013, SAO-EPD 
1568-1625. 
 
9. State when and why each Defendant was removed from the Gang Roster. 

 
ANSWER:  See answer to Interrogatory No. 6.  Defendants were each removed 
when they no longer exhibited any of the 11 criteria for gang membership for an 
approximately 2-year period until moved to inactive status, and from then no 
longer exhibited any of the 11 criteria for another approximately 2-year period. 
See Deposition Testimony of Detective Tom Wolek, March 4, 2013, SAO-EPD 
1568-1625.  
 
10. State what evidence the Plaintiffs possessed at the time each Defendant was 

removed from the Gang Roster that served as the basis for removal. 
 

ANSWER: See answer to Interrogatory No. 6.  Defendants were each removed 
when they no longer exhibited any of the 11 criteria for gang membership for an 
approximately 2-year period until moved to inactive status, and from then no 
longer exhibited any of the 11 criteria for another approximately 2-year period.  
See Deposition Testimony of Detective Tom Wolek, March 4, 2013, SAO-EPD 
1568-1625. 
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11. State how the Gang Roster is updated, how often the Gang Roster is updated 

and who updates the Gang Roster. 
 

ANSWER:  The Gang Unit of the Elgin Police Department is responsible for 
updating status of individuals’ gang membership in the digital records 
management system, LERMS/New World.  Currently, each officer who is a 
member of the gang unit is assigned by a supervisor to a list of names of 
individuals who already have the gang indicator marker in their “Global Subject 
Activity Report,” or profile, and/or names of persons being considered to have the 
gang indicator marker added.  Each officer will read and review information 
about the individual, including, but not limited to the existence or non-existence 
of police contacts or police reports, associated with that individual in the 
LERMS/New World system, and then will update the gang module with 
comments.  Any change in status must be approved by a gang unit supervisor 
before the status is changed in the system in the gang module. At the time of 
Detective Wolek’s deposition testimony, actual meetings of the officers of the 
Gang Unit would occur where the same type of review would happen in a group 
setting.  See Deposition Testimony of Detective Tom Wolek, March 4, 2013, SAO-
EPD 1568-1625.  No records of these meetings have been maintained by the 
Elgin Police Department. 
 
12. State which Elgin Police Department officers or committees were ultimately 

responsible for putting Defendants on the Gang Roster.  If a committee, state 
who was on the committee at the time the committee made the decisions to 
put each Defendant on the Gang Roster. 
 

ANSWER: Objection, relevance and beyond the scope. Plaintiffs strenuously 
object to Defendants’ attempts to obtain irrelevant information beyond the scope 
of the Appellate Court’s mandate.  The procedure for placement on the Gang 
Roster is not relevant to when Plaintiffs knew or should have known the four 
Defendants were removed from the gang roster.  Additionally, three of the four 
Defendants have admitted their gang membership and did not contest that issue 
at trial.  Nevertheless, in order to provide the most information possible, 
Plaintiffs make the following response:  See answers Document Request No. 2, 
No. 3, No. 6, No. 7, No. 8, and No. 9.  Additionally, see answers to Interrogatory 
No. 2, No. 6, No. 11, and No. 16. 
 
13. State if and when the Elgin Police Department transitioned from a hard copy 

to an electronic copy of the Gang Roster. 
 

ANSWER:  See answers to Interrogatory No. 6 and Document Request No. 3. 
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14. As to each entry or comment in the Gang Roster relating to each Defendant, 
state who made the entry and the criteria used to authorize such entry or 
comment. 

 
ANSWER: See answers to Interrogatory No. 6 and Document Requests No. 2 
and No. 3. 
 
15. State the identity of each officer mentioned in the depositions of Elias Juarez, 

Exhibit B at 102:1-8, 108:7-21, and Saul Juarez, Exhibit C at 67:21, and 
identify each time such officers met with the Defendants. 

 
ANSWER: Objection, relevance and beyond the scope. Plaintiffs strenuously 
object to Defendants’ attempts to obtain irrelevant information beyond the scope 
of the Appellate Court’s mandate.  The identities of each officer mentioned in the 
depositions of Elias Juarez, Exhibit B at 102:1-8, 108:7-21, and Saul Juarez, 
Exhibit C at 67:21 are not relevant to when Plaintiffs knew or should have 
known the four Defendants were removed from the gang roster.  Nevertheless, in 
an effort to provide the most information possible, Plaintiffs make the following 
response:  
 
Related to the officer mentioned in the deposition excerpt of Elias Juarez, 
Exhibit B at 102:1-8, referenced in Interrogatory No. 15, no date for this contact 
was given with the “middle school officer” at Ellis Middle School.  From context, 
Plaintiffs provide the following information: The School Resource Officer(s) 
(“SRO”) assigned to Ellis Middle School from 2008-2010 is/are:  Officer Elias 
Acevedo was assigned as the SRO to Ellis Middle School from 2000-2017.  Officer 
Acevedo recalls Saul Juarez being a student at Ellis during his tenure because 
he remembers meeting with him on school related matters.  If Elias Juarez 
attended Ellis Middle School, Officer Acevedo does not remember meeting with 
Elias Juarez as a student.  Officer Acevedo recalls doing his own presentations to 
students, including during their “Safe and Drug-Free Schools Week,” however, 
he does not recall ever making any arrangements for either Elias Juarez or Saul 
Juarez to conduct a presentation of any kind to the students.  Officer Acevedo is 
a resident of the City of Elgin, and recalls from time to time seeing Saul Juarez 
in passing.  He recalls that it was a few times they had conversations.  He recalls 
the last time being 4-5 years ago and the first time being maybe 8-10 years ago.  
He recalls Saul expressing an interest in speaking to students regarding his life 
experiences, related to gangs and drugs, but Ofc. Acevedo did not make 
arrangements for him to speak at any time and that’s as far as it went.  Officer 
Acevedo recalls that if Elias or Saul Juarez ever met with any Ellis Middle 
School students it may have been on behalf of another agency and outside of the 
scheduled school day. 
 



Page 9 of 11 
 

Related to the excerpt of Elias Juarez’s deposition cited in Interrogatory No. 15, 
Exhibit B at 108:7-21, Plaintiffs make the following response:  This deposition 
excerpt references a “Riverwoods Christian Academy,” which Elias Juarez 
related is an “academy,” “Riverwoods Christian something, “ “like a Christian 
church” and a “camping site” for which kids “from middle schools, Ellis and stuff 
like that” would “go over there”.  While it references that students from the 
school might attend this “academy,” the deposition excerpt does not reference an 
Elgin Police Department officer, and the Elgin Police Department is not 
affiliated with this “academy.”  
 
Related to the officer mentioned in the deposition excerpt of Saul Juarez, Exhibit 
C at 67:21, referenced in Interrogatory No. 15, no date for this contact was given 
with the “school officer” at Larsen Middle School.  From context, Plaintiffs 
provide the following information: The School Resource Officer(s) assigned to 
Larsen Middle School from 2008-2010 is/are:  Officer Greg Wilson was assigned 
as the SRO to Larsen Middle School from 1999-2009.  Officer Wilson recalls that 
people would come to the school to ask about giving presentations, and that 
there was a Fresh Start Coordinator, Marti Guihan, an employee of Larsen 
Middle School, who ran an after school program for at-risk youth and might have 
had people do presentations for that program.  Officer Wilson recognizes the 
name Elias Juarez, either from Elias attending Larsen Middle School or from 
interactions with him on the street as a patrol officer.  However, Officer Wilson 
does not recall personally knowing either Elias or Saul Juarez. Officer Wilson 
recalls that during his tenure he gave gang presentations at Larsen Middle 
School, but he never had anyone else present with him.   
 
Officer Kevin Sosnowski has been assigned as the SRO to Larsen Middle School 
from 2009-present.  He does not recall either Elias Juarez or Saul Juarez 
presenting at the school, and if they did, it was not sponsored by him.  Ofc. 
Sosnowski also recalls that the former Fresh Start Coordinator, Marti Guihan, 
employee of Larsen Middle School, might have brought in speakers to speak to 
her group of students at the school as many were at risk for gang involvement.  
Officer Sosnowski does not know or remember Elias Juarez or Saul Juarez being 
involved. 
 
16. State the person of the Elgin Police Department, or law ordinance, or other 

authority establishing policy for removing individuals from the Gang Roster 
after two years referenced by Officer Wolek in his deposition, Exhibit A at 
11:19. 

 
ANSWER:  The Elgin Police Department Gang Unit uses the standards set out 
by Det. Wolek in the entirety of his deposition testimony, taken as a whole, as 
their “working standard” for identifying and tracking gang membership and 
gang intelligence information.  See Deposition Testimony of Detective Tom 
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Wolek, March 4, 2013, SAO-EPD 1568-1625.  No policies or procedures set out 
this “working standard,” however, training materials of the Elgin Police 
Department do cover this “working standard.”  While not directly related to an 
EPD policy, Detective Wolek and other gang unit officers have participated in 
training related to criminal intelligence system information in accordance with 
28 C.F.R. 23. See SAO-EPD 1950-2087. 
 
17. For each of the officers listed in Plaintiff’s Answers to Interrogatory No. 2 

(Exhibit D), state the specific information that formed the basis of the 
testimony referenced therein. 

 
ANSWER:  Objection, relevance and beyond the scope. Plaintiffs strenuously 
object to Defendants’ attempts to obtain irrelevant information beyond the scope 
of the Appellate Court’s mandate.  Nevertheless, in an effort to provide the most 
information possible, Plaintiffs make the following response: The answers given 
to each of Defendants’ Interrogatory No. 2 (Exhibit D) list officers related to 
specific police reports.  The specific police reports were provided in discovery pre-
trial and provide the basis for the information that said officers were expected to 
testify about, should they have been called to testify. See documents previously 
produced by Plaintiffs with their response to Defendants’ Interrogatories and 
Document Requests, tendered September 28, 2012, and their Supplemental 
Answer to Discovery, tendered September 3, 2014. SAO-EPD 0017-0048. See 
also SAO-EPD 0049-1416 for a copy of all police reports and photographs related 
to Defendants, and related to the Latin Kings from Plaintiffs’ SAO file. 
 
18. State the individuals who possessed or shared information referred to in 

Interrogatory 18.  State the dates when the information was shared among 
employees, agents, and representatives of the Plaintiffs. 

 
ANSWER: Interrogatory 18 refers to itself.  Plaintiffs cannot ascertain to which 
interrogatory Defendants meant to refer. Should Defendants re-phrase this 
interrogatory, Plaintiffs will answer. 
 
19. State any third-party individuals (i.e., person not in the Elgin Police 

Department or State’s Attorney office) with whom the Plaintiffs shared the 
information referred to in Interrogatory 18.  State the dates when the 
Plaintiffs shared said information with third parties. 

 
ANSWER: Interrogatory 18 refers to itself.  Plaintiffs cannot ascertain to which 
interrogatory Defendants meant to refer. Should Defendants re-phrase this 
interrogatory, Plaintiffs will answer. 
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20. State where and how information referred to in Interrogatory 18 was stored 
in preparation for trial.  If the plaintiffs do not have said information, state 
an admission to such. 

 
ANSWER: Interrogatory 18 refers to itself.  Plaintiffs cannot ascertain to which 
interrogatory Defendants meant to refer. Should Defendants re-phrase this 
interrogatory, Plaintiffs will answer. 
 
 

DATED: June, 1, 2020   RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
People of the State of Illinois, and the 
City of Elgin, Illinois, 
 

BY:  
 Megan L. Baxter 
 Assistant State’s Attorney 

 
JOSEPH H. MCMAHON 
KANE COUNTY STATE’S ATTORNEY 
Kane County State’s Attorney’s Office 
Megan L. Baxter 
Assistant State’s Attorney 
100 S. Third Street, Fourth Floor 
Geneva, Illinois 60134 
Atty. No. 6209481 
T: 630-208-5320 
F: 630-208-5180 
E: baxtermegan@co.kane.il.us 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE SIXTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT KANE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS 
and THE CITY OF ELGIN, ILLINOIS, 

Plaintiffs, 

v. 

THE LATIN KINGS, et al., 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

------------------------------------------------------) 
) 

ELIAS JUAREZ, SAUL JUAREZ, OSCAR) 
SANCHEZ and RUBEN SANCHEZ, ) 

Counter-Plaintiffs, 

v. 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS 
and THE CITY OF ELGIN, ILLINOIS, 

Counter-Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

NO. 10 CH 4151 

ELIAS JUAREZ'S INTERROGATORIES ISSUED TO DEFENDANTS 

Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff Elias Juarez, by and through his attorneys Mauck & 

Baker, LLC, hereby issues his interrogatories under Supreme Com1 Rule 213. 

Definitions and Explanations 

!. NOTICE TO PLAINTFFS IN ANSWERING THESE 

INTERROGATORIES: The complaint (1) makes no allegations of fact against 

this Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff, other than the bare conclusion that he is a 

member of the Latin Kings which he denies, and which leaves him to guess as to 

Plaintiffs' claims against him; and (2) seeks wildly overbroad injunctive relief, 

compensation for "damages, losses, impairments, or other harm", punitive damages, 
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attorney's fees, costs, divestiture and other restrictions. Accordingly, demand is 

made that these interrogatories be answered fully, comprehensively and in extensive 

detail so as to provide this Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff with Due Process and enable 

him to respond to the charges against him .and relief claimed from him. 

2. Whenever respondent is asked to "identify" a person or persons, it is 

contemplated that respondent will provide the person's name, cunent address, last known 

address if no current address is known, social security number, phone number, job title or 

position held with respondent or his/her company, whether the person is presently 

employed by respondent, and if not, whether respondent or any of his/her employees or 

agents knows of the person's whereabouts. 

3. The word "document(s)", including updated definitions in the Code of Civil 

Procedure, means every writing and record of every type and description, including but 

not limited to, papers, statements, photographs, films, recordings, correspondence, 

communications, memoranda and written notes, checks, check registers, books and 

accounting, computer cards, printouts and all retrievable information in computer storage, 

tapes, discs, and records of all types, minutes of meetings, studies, books, pamphlets, 

pictures and voice recordings or every other device or medium on which or through 

which information of any type is to be transmitted, recorded or preserved. The term 

"document(s)" also means a copy where the original is not in your possession, custody or 

control, and every copy of the document if such copy is not an identical duplicate of the 

original. 
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4. "Person" means and includes natural persons, corporations, pminerships, 

associations, or any type of entity, and agents, servants, employees and representatives 

thereof. 

5. Each request to describe or identify a document shall be deemed to include a 

request for information sufficient to enable plaintiff to obtain the document with a 

subpoena, including but not limited to the date of the document, a physical description of 

the document, a brief description of the content of the document, the identity of the 

custodian of the document, the location of the document, and any title given to the 

document. If an interrogatory calls for a description of a document, you may, if you 

prefer, instead of identifying it, attach to your answer a clear copy, front and reverse of 

the document. 

6. An election to produce business records in lieu of answering these intenogatories 

is not satisfactory if the interrogatory(ies) request information that is coded, illegible, or 

incomprehensible on the requested documents. You must expressly identifY names, 

identifications and other information which is coded, illegible or incomprehensible. 

7. "Oral statement" means and includes any face to face communication, 

conversation, meeting, conference, or any such communication by telephone, radio or 

other means of verbal communication. 

8. In each case in which you are asked to identify an oral statement or where your 

answer to the interrogatory refers to the identity of an oral statement, this is a request to 

give the identity of the person who made the statement and the person hearing the 

statement, and the date, time, and place of its occurrence, and to briefly describe the 

content of the statement. 
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9. "State in full detail" means to set out in the fullest detail possible all knowledge or 

information available to you on the subject. 

I 0. "You" and "your" in these interrogatories refers to plaintiffs as identified in the 

complaint or in the caption to these interrogatories and, when appropriate, persons acting 

at the direction of or on behalf of plaintiffs. 

II. If any claim of privilege is made, the document or information withheld should be 

fully identified and a privilege log provided. 

INTERROGATORIES 

I. Identify each person preparing the answers to these interrogatories or providing 

information used in preparing the answers to these intenogatories. 

2. Identify all lay witnesses, as contemplated by Rule 213(f)(l), who will testify at 

trial, together with the subjects on which each witness will testify and the address ofthe 

witness. 

3. Identify all independent expert witnesses, as contemplated by Rule 213(f)(2), who 

will testify at trial. For each witness, specify: 

(a) the subjects on which the witness will testify, 
(b) the opinions expected to be elicited from the witness, and 
(c) the address of the witness. 

4. Identify all controlled expert witnesses, as contemplated by Rule 213(f)(3), who 

will testify at trial. For each witness, specify: 

(a) the subjects on which the witness will testify, 
(b) the conclusions and opinions of the witness and the bases therefor, 
(c) the qualifications of the witness, 
(d) any reports prepared by the witness about the case, and 
(e) the address of the witness. 
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5. State the beginning and end dates upon which you believe this individual 

Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff first became a member of the Latin Kings, whether you 

believe he still is a member of the Latin Kings and, if not, the last date upon which he 

was a member of the Latin Kings. Identify all evidence suppm1ing your conclusions as to 

membership dates, and further identify all evidence which contradicts or tends to 

disprove your conclusions. Also, identifY all persons of whom you are aware who have 

met this individual Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff and who have conveyed to you a belief 

or understanding that he is or was a member of the Latin Kings at any time. 

6. Identify each person who has personal knowledge of any of the facts alleged in 

Plaintiffs' Complaint or Defendant/Counter-Plaintiffs Answer, Affirmative Defenses and 

Counterclaims which you consider to be applicable to this individual 

Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff, whether or not the person is controlled by defendant, and 

describe generally that person's knowledge, being specific enough to enable the recipient 

to determine the facts, location, dates and persons present. 

7. Except to the extent it is answered in response to one or more of the 

interrogatories above, in regard to Thomas Walek's affidavit concluding that this 

individual Defendant/Counter-Piaintiff"is a member of the Latin Kings street gang": 

a. Identify each of the "many factors" which he considered, and additionally 

identify (as referenced in his affidavit): every item of documentary evidence he 

reviewed, each person with whom he spoke, the "self-admission as to his 

membership in the Latin Kings street gang", the criminal investigations involving 

him, the "police contacts" with him including identifYing the particular officers 

and all documents involved, each of the "observations" of this individual 

F:\Clients\2969\JNTE1iasJuarez20 120208.doc 5 



Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff and anything else he considered in reaching his 

conclusion. 

b. Regarding certifications referenced in the first paragraph of the affidavit, 

identify every certification "in the State of Illinois as a gang expeJi in State and 

Federal Comi and the Sixteenth Judicial Circuit" providing, at a minimum the full 

caption of the case, the judge or other person sanctioning the certification, the 

date of the ce1iification, and whether there is a transcript of the proceedings or 

other evidence of the certification. 

8. Other than the responses produced in answer to inten·ogatory # 6; regarding the 

allegation in complaint~ 3 that this individual Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff is, or was at 

any time on or after 9/8/10, a member of the Latin Kings street gang, identify every item 

of evidence tending in any way to prove the allegation, including but not limited to: 

a. Every item of documentary evidence, including but not limited to court 

records, State's Attorney records, City of Elgin records, police arrest 

records, conviction records, reports, investigations, observations, 

summaries, notes and all other documents; 

b. For each entry in the "Gang List" records maintained by either or both 

plaintiffs, identify each place on the List that this individual 

Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff is mentioned and for each entry identify who 

made the entry and the factual basis for the entry. 

c. All photographs, artist renderings and other depictions; 

d. Every oral or written statement you, your agents or attorneys have 

obtained; 
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e. Every item referenced in 11~ l(a)-(n) of the WHEREFORE clause of the 

complaint which you allege that this individual Defendant/Counter

Plaintiff used; 

f. Every action referenced in~~ l(a)-(n) of the WHEREFORE clause of the 

complaint in which you allege that this individual Defendant/Counter

Plaintiff engaged; 

g. Identify each person with knowledge tending in any way to prove the 

allegation, specifically identifYing the knowledge the person possesses; 

9. Regarding the allegations of complaint~~ 2( d)-( f) identifY each action for which 

you have evidence that this individual Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff engaged; and for 

each identify all evidence which supports your contention. 

I 0. State whether you seek compensatory, punitive damages and/or attorney's fees 

costs or other relief against this individual Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff as described in 

complaint~~ 8-9 or WHEREFORE clause~~ 2-4, and if yes: 

a. Identify every action which you believe this individual 

Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff engaged in justifying an award of damages, 

attorney's fees, costs or other relief against him. 

b. Identify all evidence ,which supports each of the actions in which you 

allege this individual Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff engaged. 

11. State whether you seek injunctive relief against this individual 

Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff as described in complaint~ 9 or WHEREFORE clause 11~ 

l(a)-(n), and if yes: 
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a. Identify every action which you believe this individual 

Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff engaged in justifying an injunction against 

him. 

b. Identify all evidence which suppotis each of the actions in which you 

allege this individual Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff engaged. 

12. State whether you seek divestiture, imposition of restrictions in the future or other 

relief against this individual Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff as described in WHEREFORE 

clause~ 4, and if yes: 

a. Identify every action which you believe this individual 

Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff engaged in justifying an award ofthis form of 

relief against him. 

b. Identify all evidence which suppmis each of the actions in which you 

allege this individual Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff engaged. 

13. Except as identified in response to the above interrogatories, identify all evidence 

which supports each of the actions in which you allege this individual 

Defendant/Counter-Plaintiffengaged.in violation of the Act upon which the complaint is 

based. 

14. IdentifY all positions you believe this individual Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff has 

held in the Latin Kings at any time, including, but not limited to, the positions of Gang 

Officer, Director, Leader and Member as identified in the Act; and for each position 

provide the approximates dates he held the position. 

15. Identify what you consider, per WHEREFORE clause~ l(n), to be the Latin 

Kings': 
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a. Gang colors; 

b. Gang signs; 

c. "the recruitment or attempted recruitment of gang members and/or gang 

associates" 

d. "other activity deemed 'gang related' as defined by 740 ILCS 147/10", 

and 

e. Identify all evidence which supports each of the actions in which you 

allege this individual Defendant/Counter-Plaintiff engaged. 

John W. Mauck 
Andy R. Norman 
Mauck & Baker, LLC 
One N. LaSalle St., Ste. 600 
Chicago, IL 60602 
(312) 726-1243 
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Respectfully submitted, 
MAUCK & BAK , LLC 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE SIXTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
KANE COUNTY, ILLINOIS

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, AND )
THE CITY OF ELGIN, ILLINOIS, )

)
Plaintiffs, )

vs. ) NO. 10  CH 4151
)

The LATIN KINGS, and )
Jose A. Acevedo; Jose A. Arizmendi; Emmanuel nmi Avila; )
Jorge L. Avila; Carlos nmi Banuelos; Luis F. Beltran; )
Carlos Luis C. Berrum Jr.; Jaime nmi Boyzo Jr.; Jovane J. Brito;)
Alejandro nmi Capuchino; Adrian nmi Carachure; Roberto nmi )
Carachure Jr.; Ruben nmi Carachure; Luke nmi Carver; )
Jonathan nmi Casataneda; Jr.; Anthony K. Coppoletta; Joseph )
A. Delapena; Roberto A. Delgadillo; Jose G. Espinoza; Jesse G. )
Fernandez; Ruben nmi Fernandez; Armando Garcia; Juan C. )
Garcia; Victor nmi Garcia; Cristian nmi Garza; Alejandro )
nmi Gerardo; Efran nmi Gerardo; Gabriel nmi Gonzalez; Jose L.)
Gonzalez; Oscar nmi Guerrero; Jose R. Gutierrez; Miguel nmi )
Hernandez; Sergio Hinojosa-Briseno; )
Timothy H. Hubbard; Fabian nmi Jaimes; Elias nmi Juarez; Saul)
nmi Juarez; Hugo nmi Lara; Emmanuel L. Limberg; Gabriel )
nmi Lopez; Juan nmi Macedo, Jr.; Edgar nmi Maldonado; Jesus )
A. Maldonado; Miguel A. Maldonado; Paulino nmi Maldonado; )
Rigoberto nmi Mancilla; Gervacio O. Manzo; Omar E. )
Martillo-Burgos; Esteban nmi Martinez; Jesus K. Martinez; )
Sergio nmi Martinez; Enrique nmi Mascote; Rodrigo nmi )
Mascote; Francisco A. Morales Jr.; Aurelio nmi Munoz; )
Amanda A. Neto; Alejandro nmi Nino; Guillermo nmi Nino Jr.; )
Francisco nmi Ochoa; Victor A. Ortega; Fabian nmi Pena; )
Daniel nmi Perez; Leo nmi Perez; Andres nmi Quinones; Daniel ) 
nmi Quinones; Alejandro J.Rodriguez; )
Hugo Cesar Rodriguez; Jose G. Romero; Orasio nmi Romero; )
Oscar nmi Sanchez; Ruben nmi Sanchez; Albino V. Torres; )
Cesar F. Trevino; Luis A. Valadez; Hugo nmi Vargas; Jose nmi )
Vargas; Juan C. Yanez; Daniel nmi Zambrano, Jr.; Hector nmi )
Zarate; )
And other UNKNOWN Latin King members, )

Defendants, )

PLAINTIFFS’ SUPPLEMENTAL ANSWERS TO S.CT. RULE 213(f)(3)
INTERROGATORIES 
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NOW COMES the Plaintiffs’, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS and THE CITY

OF ELGIN, ILLINOIS, by and through their attorneys, the Kane County States Attorneys Office

and by and through Special Prosecutor Patrick J. Crimmins and BRADY & JENSEN, LLP and

for their Supplemental Answers to Defendants’ ELIAS JUAREZ, SAUL JUAREZ, OSCAR

SANCHEZ and RUBEN SANCHEZ  Illinois Supreme Court Rule 213(f)(3) Interrogatories, states

the following:

1. State the name and address of the person answering and signing the Answers to these

Interrogatories.

ANSWER:

Patrick J. Crimmins, Esq.

2. Pursuant to Supreme Court Rule 213(f)(3), please identify the name and address of each

Controlled Expert Witness who will testify at trial.

ANSWER:

Deputy Chief Wolf, Officer James Lalley, Sgt. Jim Lullo, Lt. Jeff Adam, and Tom Wolek,
Elgin Police Department. As yet unknown expert(s) from the Elgin police Department

and/or the City of Elgin finance department regarding damages.

Investigation continues.

3. Pursuant to Supreme Court Rule 213(f)(3), please identify for each Controlled Expert

Witness:

a. The subjects on which the witness will testify;

b. The conclusions and opinions of the witness and the basis therefor;

c. The qualifications of the witness; and

d. Any reports prepared by the witness about this case.

ANSWER:

Plaintiffs will call Deputy Chief William Wolf, Elgin Police Department.  He will be

asked to describe for the jury his learning, education, training, and background in law
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enforcement generally and street gang investigations specifically. He will testify as to his

qualifications as they relate to the Latin King street gang in Elgin. He will testify as to his

knowledge of the Latin King street gang as it existed/exists in the City of Elgin. He will

be asked to describe for the jury the materials he reviewed for purposes of initiating the

litigation herein versus the Latin King street gang. He will testify about the numerous

investigations involving the Latin Kings and street gangs generally.

Deputy Chief Wolf be advised will continue review depositions and discovery materials

as they become available, and may alter and/or change his opinions as this occurs and

Plaintiff reserves the right to seasonably supplement this disclosure pursuant to law and

court order. 

Deputy Chief Wolf will give a series of opinions regarding the Latin King street gang. All

of his opinions will be based upon a reasonable degree of law enforcement certainty.

Wolf will discuss the fact that the Elgin Latin Kings are predominantly a Hispanic street

gang. The Latin Kings are one of the oldest street gangs in the Chicago area, forming

during the 1960's. The Latin Kings are members of the People Nation gangs and in Elgin.

The Elgin chapter of the Latin kings became organized by 1980 and at their peak had

close to 300 known members. Some of the areas the Elgin Latin Kings called home were

as follows: Stella and Percy streets, 317 Ball street, Crystal and Ball, and the 900 block of

S. Liberty. He will opine that the Elgin Latin Kings are an inherently dangerous criminal

enterprise. He will opine that due to the actions of the Elgin Latin King street gang’s

violence and patterns of criminal activity and gang-related crimes, the City of Elgin has

had to expend money, allocating or reallocating police, firefighting, emergency or other

personnel or resources, or otherwise incurred  losses, or harm whatsoever, proximately

caused by any course or pattern of criminal activity, and specifically the murder of Hector

Munoz.

In May of 1988 the Inca of the Latin Kings, Hector Munoz was murdered in a gang-

related homicide by a fellow member of the Latin King street gang in Elgin, Kane

County. The murder it was discovered was due to several Latin Kings believing that

Munoz had “tricked” or given states witness against and on other the Latin Kings. The
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details of this homicide are chronicled in EPD report number 98-05-1605. Several Latin

Kings were charged. Deputy Chief Wolf will detail the events involved in that homicide

and he will opine that the offense was gang related and consistent with a course or pattern

of criminal activity.  Christian Garza, also a Latin King was subsequently charged and

convicted of Aggravated Battery With a Firearm in that offense. Wolf will give similar

opinions regarding Garza.  

 These opinions will be based and are founded upon Wolf’s training, background and

experience and his review of the previously disclosed reports, including 98-05-1605,

discussions with fellow EPD officers and experts, and his knowledge of the City of Elgin

and its history of law enforcement as it relates to the Latin Kings.

Wolf will testify consistently with his discovery deposition in this case. Wolf may also be

asked questions on any other subject which came up at his at discovery deposition.

Investigation continues. He will rely upon the court file and trial transcripts as yet not

obtained regarding the homicidal death of Hector Munoz. The People do not believe an

expert report regarding this matter herein has been specifically prepared by Wolf.

Investigation Continues.

Plaintiff may call Elgin Detective Jim Lalley. He will be asked to describe for the jury

his learning, education, training, and background in law enforcement generally and street

gang investigations specifically. He will testify as to his qualifications as they relate to the

Latin King street gang in Elgin. He will testify as to his knowledge of the Latin King

street gang as it existed/exists in the City of Elgin. He will testify about the numerous

investigations involving the Latin Kings and street gangs generally.

Lalley be advised will continue review depositions and discovery materials as they

become available, and may alter and/or change his opinions as this occurs and Plaintiff

reserves the right to seasonably supplement this disclosure pursuant to law and court

order. 

Elgin Detective Jim Lalley will give a series of opinions regarding the Latin King street

gang. All of his opinions will be based upon a reasonable degree of law enforcement

certainty.
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Lalley may also discuss the fact that the Elgin Latin Kings are predominantly a Hispanic

street gang. The Latin Kings are one of the oldest street gangs in the Chicago area,

forming during the 1960's. The Latin Kings are members of the People Nation gangs and

in Elgin. The Elgin chapter of the Latin kings became organized by 1980 and at their peak

had close to 300 known members. Some of the areas the Elgin Latin Kings called home

were as follows: Stella and Percy streets, 317 Ball street, Crystal and Ball, and the 900

block of S. Liberty. He will opine that the Elgin Latin Kings are an inherently dangerous

criminal enterprise. He will opine that due to the actions of the Elgin Latin King street

gang’s violence and patterns of criminal activity and gang-related crimes, the City of

Elgin has had to expend money, allocating or reallocating police, firefighting, emergency

or other personnel or resources, or otherwise incurred  losses, or harm whatsoever,

proximately caused by any course or pattern of criminal activity, and specifically the

shooting of Robert A. Trujillo in a gang dispute between gang rivals the Latin Kings and

the Maniac Latin Disciples, whereby the Defendant Ivan Guzman shot Robert Trujillo in

the leg using a “Nation Gun”-or a gun belonging to the Latin Kings to shoot at the

Maniac Latin Disciples, striking Trujillo.

The details of this shooting are chronicled in EPD report number 02-07-1493, as

previously disclosed. Lalley will detail the events involved in that shooting and he will

opine that the offense was gang related and consistent with a course or pattern of criminal

activity.

 These opinions will be based and are founded upon Lalley’s training, background and

experience and his review of the previously disclosed reports, including, 02-07-1493, 

discussions with fellow EPD officers and experts, and his knowledge of the City of Elgin

and its history of law enforcement as it relates to the Latin Kings.

Lalley will testify consistently with his discovery deposition in this case. Lalley may also

be asked questions on any other subject which came up at his at discovery deposition.

Investigation continues. He will rely upon the court file and trial transcripts as yet not

obtained regarding the shooting of Robert Trujillo and the charges against Ivan Guzman..

The People do not believe an expert report regarding this matter herein has been
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specifically prepared by Lalley.

Investigation Continues.

Lalley will also testify regarding the details involving the arrest of Latin King David

Sevilla as chronicled in report number 02-12-0965, as previously disclosed. He will opine

that David Sevila was a known Latin King and he was caught attempting to shoot a

Shawn Carter.

He will opine that due to the actions of the Elgin Latin King street gang’s violence and

patterns of criminal activity and gang-related crimes, the City of Elgin has had to expend

money, allocating or reallocating police, firefighting, emergency or other personnel or

resources, or otherwise incurred  losses, or harm whatsoever, proximately caused by any

course or pattern of criminal activity, and specifically the apprehension of David Sevilla.

Lalley will recount the details of this shooting are chronicled in EPD report number 02-

12-0965, as previously disclosed. Lalley will detail the events involved in that

apprehension and he will opine that the offense was gang related and consistent with a

course or pattern of criminal activity.

These opinions will be based and are founded upon Lalley’s training, background and

experience and his review of the previously disclosed reports, including, 02-12-0965, 

discussions with fellow EPD officers and experts, and his knowledge of the City of Elgin

and its history of law enforcement as it relates to the Latin Kings.

Lalley will testify consistently with his discovery deposition in this case. Lalley may also

be asked questions on any other subject which came up at his at discovery deposition.

Investigation continues. He will rely upon the court file and trial transcripts as yet not

obtained regarding the arrest of David Sevilla. The People do not believe an expert report

regarding this matter herein has been specifically prepared by Lalley.

Lalley will also testify regarding the details involving the arrest of Manuel Guerrero , a

known Latin King regarding the shooting death of Tito Villareal in a gang-related

altercation and shooting wherein Defendant Guerrero confronted victim Villareal about

wearing his hat to the right. as chronicled in report number 03-08-1168, as previously

disclosed. He will opine that Manuel Guerrero was a known Latin King. 
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He will opine that due to the actions of the Elgin Latin King street gang’s violence and

patterns of criminal activity and gang-related crimes, the City of Elgin has had to expend

money, allocating or reallocating police, firefighting, emergency or other personnel or

resources, or otherwise incurred  losses, or harm whatsoever, proximately caused by any

course or pattern of criminal activity, and specifically the arrest of Manuel Guerrero and

the homicidal death of Tito Villareal.

Lalley will recount the details of this shooting are chronicled in EPD report number 03-

08-1168, as previously disclosed. Lalley will detail the events involved in that

apprehension and he will opine that the offense was gang related and consistent with a

course or pattern of criminal activity.

These opinions will be based and are founded upon Lalley’s training, background and

experience and his review of the previously disclosed reports, including, 03-08-1168, 

discussions with fellow EPD officers and experts, and his knowledge of the City of Elgin

and its history of law enforcement as it relates to the Latin Kings.

Lalley will testify consistently with his discovery deposition in this case. Lalley may also

be asked questions on any other subject which came up at his at discovery deposition.

Investigation continues. He will rely upon the court file and trial transcripts as yet not

obtained regarding the homicide of Tito Villareal. The People do not believe an expert

report regarding this matter herein has been specifically prepared by Lalley.

Investigation Continues.

Lalley will also testify regarding the details involving the arrest of Francisco Santiago, a

known Latin King regarding the shooting of Jerrell Walker in a gang-related altercation

and shooting. He will opine that Francisco Santiago was a known Latin King. 

He will opine that due to the actions of the Elgin Latin King street gang’s violence and

patterns of criminal activity and gang-related crimes, the City of Elgin has had to expend

money, allocating or reallocating police, firefighting, emergency or other personnel or

resources, or otherwise incurred  losses, or harm whatsoever, proximately caused by any

course or pattern of criminal activity, and specifically the arrest of Francisco Santiago and

the shooting of Jerrel Walker.
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Lalley will recount the details of this shooting are chronicled in EPD report number 03-

06-0511, as previously disclosed. Lalley will detail the events involved in that

apprehension and he will opine that the offense was gang related and consistent with a

course or pattern of criminal activity.

These opinions will be based and are founded upon Lalley’s training, background and

experience and his review of the previously disclosed reports, including, 03-06-0511, 

discussions with fellow EPD officers and experts, and his knowledge of the City of Elgin

and its history of law enforcement as it relates to the Latin Kings.

Lalley will testify consistently with his discovery deposition in this case. Lalley may also

be asked questions on any other subject which came up at his at discovery deposition.

Investigation continues. He will rely upon the court file and trial transcripts as yet not

obtained regarding the shooting of Jerrell Walker. The People do not believe an expert

report regarding this matter herein has been specifically prepared by Lalley.

Investigation Continues.

Again, Detective Lalley will be called to recount the details of 04-09-0573, as previously

disclosed. Latin Kings Pedro Rendon and Arturo Castro committed the forcible felonies

of aggravated discharge of a firearm and aggravated unlawful use of a weapon.

He will opine that due to the actions of the Elgin Latin King street gang’s violence and

patterns of criminal activity and gang-related crimes, the City of Elgin has had to expend

money, allocating or reallocating police, firefighting, emergency or other personnel or

resources, or otherwise incurred  losses, or harm whatsoever, proximately caused by any

course or pattern of criminal activity, and specifically the arrests of Pedro Rendon and

Arturo Castro and the shooting detailed in 04-09-0573.

Lalley will recount the details of this shooting are chronicled in EPD report number 04-

09-0573, as previously disclosed. Lalley will detail the events involved in that

apprehension and he will opine that the offense was gang related and consistent with a

course or pattern of criminal activity.

These opinions will be based and are founded upon Lalley’s training, background and

experience and his review of the previously disclosed reports, including, 04-09-0573, 
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discussions with fellow EPD officers and experts, and his knowledge of the City of Elgin

and its history of law enforcement as it relates to the Latin Kings.

Lalley will testify consistently with his discovery deposition in this case. Lalley may also

be asked questions on any other subject which came up at his at discovery deposition.

Investigation continues. He will rely upon the court file and trial transcripts as yet not

obtained regarding this shooting. The People do not believe an expert report regarding

this matter herein has been specifically prepared by Lalley.

Investigation Continues.

Lalley and Wolek will be called to recount the details of 06-06-1118, as previously

disclosed. Latin Kings Aaron Corson, Rigoberto Mancilla, and Esteban Martinez

committed the forcible felonies of aggravated battery and mob action in that these

defendants struck gang rivals Avery Binion and Demarco Scott in a gang related incident.

He will opine that due to the actions of the Elgin Latin King street gang’s violence and

patterns of criminal activity and gang-related crimes, the City of Elgin has had to expend

money, allocating or reallocating police, firefighting, emergency or other personnel or

resources, or otherwise incurred  losses, or harm whatsoever, proximately caused by any

course or pattern of criminal activity, and specifically the arrests of Pedro Rendon and

Arturo Castro and the shooting detailed in 04-09-0573.

He will opine that due to the actions of the Elgin Latin King street gang’s violence and

patterns of criminal activity and gang-related crimes, the City of Elgin has had to expend

money, allocating or reallocating police, firefighting, emergency or other personnel or

resources, or otherwise incurred  losses, or harm whatsoever, proximately caused by any

course or pattern of criminal activity, and specifically the arrests of these defendants in

the incident detailed in 06-06-1118.

Lalley will recount the details of this incident as chronicled in EPD report number 06-06-

1118, as previously disclosed. Lalley will detail the events involved in that apprehension

and he will opine that the offense was gang related and consistent with a course or pattern

of criminal activity.

These opinions will be based and are founded upon Lalley’s training, background and

experience and his review of the previously disclosed reports, including, 06-06-1118, 
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discussions with fellow EPD officers and experts, and his knowledge of the City of Elgin

and its history of law enforcement as it relates to the Latin Kings.

Lalley will testify consistently with his discovery deposition in this case. Lalley may also

be asked questions on any other subject which came up at his at discovery deposition.

Investigation continues. He will rely upon the court file and trial transcripts as yet not

obtained regarding this shooting. The People do not believe an expert report regarding

this matter herein has been specifically prepared by Lalley.

Wolek will be called to recount the details of 08-07-1784, as previously disclosed. Latin

King Oscar Hernandez committed the felony offense of Aggravated Unlawful Use of a

Weapon in a gang related incident. Additionally, Plaintiffs adopt and reallege previous

disclosure as to Wolek. Wolek will testify consistently with his discovery deposition in

this case. He may also be asked questions on any other subject which came up at his at

discovery deposition. Investigation continues. 

He will opine that due to the actions of the Elgin Latin King street gang’s violence and

patterns of criminal activity and gang-related crimes, the City of Elgin has had to expend

money, allocating or reallocating police, firefighting, emergency or other personnel or

resources, or otherwise incurred  losses, or harm whatsoever, proximately caused by any

course or pattern of criminal activity, and specifically the arrest of Oscar Hernandez

detailed in 08-07-01784.

He will opine that due to the actions of the Elgin Latin King street gang’s violence and

patterns of criminal activity and gang-related crimes, the City of Elgin has had to expend

money, allocating or reallocating police, firefighting, emergency or other personnel or

resources, or otherwise incurred  losses, or harm whatsoever, proximately caused by any

course or pattern of criminal activity, and specifically the arrests of these defendants in

the incident detailed in 08-07-01784.

Wolek will recount the details of this incident as chronicled in EPD report number  08-

07-01784, as previously disclosed. Wolek will detail the events involved in that

apprehension and he will opine that the offense was gang related and consistent with a

course or pattern of criminal activity.

These opinions will be based and are founded upon Wolek’s training, background and

Page 10 of  12



experience and his review of the previously disclosed reports, including, 08-07-01784, 

discussions with fellow EPD officers and experts, and his knowledge of the City of Elgin

and its history of law enforcement as it relates to the Latin Kings.

Wolek will testify consistently with his discovery deposition in this case. Wolek may also

be asked questions on any other subject which came up at his at discovery deposition.

Investigation continues. He will rely upon the court file and trial transcripts as yet not

obtained regarding this shooting. The People do not believe an expert report regarding

this matter herein has been specifically prepared by Wolek, other than previously

provided.

Sgt James Lullo and Lt. Jeff Adam will be called to testify generally about the Elgin Latin

Kings generally, their historical information, organizational structure, and characteristics.

They will testify as to their history in the City of Elgin. He will opine that due to the

actions of the Elgin Latin King street gang’s violence and patterns of criminal activity and

gang-related crimes, the City of Elgin has had to expend money, allocating or reallocating

police, firefighting, emergency or other personnel or resources, or otherwise incurred 

losses, or harm whatsoever, proximately caused by any course or pattern of criminal

activity, and specifically these delineated investigations and arrests.

            Investigation continues. 

The Plaintiffs reserve the right to name different and/or additional witnesses as the

litigation progresses.

As yet unknown witnesses from the City of Elgin finance department and/or Elgin Police

Department regarding the issue of damages.

Investigation Continues.
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WHEREFORE, Plaintiff herein acknowledges his ongoing duty to seasonably

supplement or amend any prior answer or response whenever new or additional information

becomes known, in compliance with Illinois Supreme Court Rule 213(i).

____________________________________
Patrick J. Crimmins, as Special Prosecutor for the
Kane County States Attorneys Office, States
Attorney Joseph McMahon

BRADY & JENSEN
2425 Royal Boulevard
Elgin, IL  60123
(847) 695-2000
(847) 695-3243 fax
Attorney No. 06195262
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SAO-EPD1534



SAO-EPD1475



SAO-EPD1476



SAO-EPD1477
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IL

Occupation:
County of Origin:Hair Length:

# of Dependents:
HispanicEthnicity:Facial Shape:

Age Range:ILCountry/State of Birth:Appearance:
Physical Characteristics:

J62020085243DL#:
BlackHair:
BrownEyes:

DL State:
Race: Hispanic

08/26/1985DOB:
170.0 lbs.Weight:Phone #:
5ft 6in

Male

Height:

Sex:

60120IL
ELGIN
274 CHAPARRAL CIRAddress:

Juarez, Elias Jacket: 34654 A SSN:

Hand Preference:City of Birth:Hair Style:

Primary Language:
Citizenship:MediumComplexion:

Second Language:
Tribe:Build:

Gang Affiliation:
Hate Group:Glasses:

Marital Status:
Military Service:Teeth:

Blood Type:
Military Discharge:Speech:

Religion:
School:Voice:
Beard:Mustache:

IllinoisPlace of Birth:

NoDNA Collected: DNA Collected Date:

County of Conviction: State Of Conviction:

NoIllegal Alien:

Identifying Clothing:

Current Address Information

Handicap Information
Handicap

Scars, Marks, Tattoos
Type Location Scar, Mark or Tattoo Detail Description
Tattoo TAT RF ARM OTHER MARIA RFOREARM 
Tattoo TAT CHEST OTHER EJ 
Tattoo TAT UR ARM OTHER FACES 

School/Employer Information
Relationship School/Employer Name Phone Type Phone

Known Associates
Relationship Name

Associated IDs
Issue Date ID Type Number Issuing State Start Date Expire Date

IR Number 1576013 IL
SID IL43480510 IL

Nicknames
Entered Date/Time Nickname Type Nickname

Aliases
 Type Alias DOB Race Sex SSN Hair Eyes DL# Height Weight Phone

Crime Specialities

Modus Operandi

Known Offender:

   

Print Date/Time:
Login ID:

Elgin Police Department

Global Subject Activity Report

03/04/2020 15:11
wolek_t ORI Number: IL0450600

Detail

Page: 1 of 3

SAO-EPD0001



Type : Arrest

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

06/19/2003 13:00 015497595 Arrest Type: unknown IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-101*,No Valid Drivers 
License ( DL ) - Expired 1 year or Less - 
Petty Offense

12/17/2004 12:00 016037913 Arrest Type: unknown IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-101*,No Valid Drivers 
License ( DL ) - Expired 1 year or Less - 
Petty Offense

04/07/2005 00:00 016142269 Arrest Type: unknown IL0450600
Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/24-1.6-D,Aggravated 
Unlawful Use of a Weapon - Body Armor 
-Class X
720 ILCS 5.0/24-1.6-a-1-3-C,Aggravated 
Unlawful Use of a Weapon - 
Possessor/no FOID - Class 4
720 ILCS 5.0/24-1.6-a-1-3-C,Aggravated 
Unlawful Use of a Weapon - 
Possessor/no FOID - Class 4

01/09/2006 20:00 016415253 Arrest Type: unknown IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/11-804-C,Improper Stop 
Without Signal
625 ILCS 5.0/6-101*,No Valid Drivers 
License ( DL ) - Expired 1 year or Less - 
Petty Offense
625 ILCS 5.0/3-707,Operating Uninsured 
Motor Vehicle - Petty Offense

01/21/2008 00:00 017144367 Arrest Type: unknown IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-303-A,Driving with 
suspended/revoked drivers license - 
Class A
625 ILCS 5.0/3-413-A,No Front/Rear 
Plate -Petty Offense
625 ILCS 5.0/3-707,Operating Uninsured 
Motor Vehicle - Petty Offense

Type : Field Investigation

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

06/02/2011 16:40 11 Contact Type: In Person IL0450600
Charge(s):

Activity

Address Type Address City State Zip

Prior Address Information
Address Type Address City State Zip From Date To Date
Home 316 KIMBALL ST ELGIN IL 60120
Home 276 MORGAN ST ELGIN IL 60123
Home 916 S  LIBERTY ST ELGIN IL 60120

Contact Information
Date Type Phone Extension

Vehicle Information
Vehicle # Role Contact Date Vehicle Type Make Model Vehicle Year Registration Number State

   

Print Date/Time:
Login ID:

Elgin Police Department

Global Subject Activity Report

03/04/2020 15:11
wolek_t ORI Number: IL0450600

Detail
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Type : Tickets & Citations

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

07/05/2011 18:48 S0209-000003 Written Warning IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/11-306,Disregarding Traffic 
Control Light - Petty Offense

11/15/2014 21:37 S0187-002096 State Citation IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/3-414,Expiration of 
Registration

11/15/2014 21:41 S0187-002097 Written Warning IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-112,Driver License Not 
On Person - Failure to Display -Petty 
Offense

03/08/2016 13:57 S0358-002366 State Citation IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/11-601-B,Speeding - Petty 
Offense

03/08/2016 13:57 S0358-002367 State Citation IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/3-707,Operating Uninsured 
Motor Vehicle - Petty Offense

12/29/2018 16:02 S0199-001436 State Citation IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/11-601-B,Speeding - Petty 
Offense

Total Activity : 12

   

Print Date/Time:
Login ID:

Elgin Police Department

Global Subject Activity Report

03/04/2020 15:11
wolek_t ORI Number: IL0450600

Detail
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IL

Occupation:
KaneCounty of Origin:BaldHair Length:

# of Dependents:
HispanicEthnicity:Facial Shape:

Age Range:Kane/ILCountry/State of Birth:Appearance:
Physical Characteristics:

J62078086265DL#:
BlackHair:
BrownEyes:

DL State:
Race: White

09/17/1986DOB:

260.0 lbs. to 
260.0 lbs.

(224)402-9533 Weight:Phone #:
5ft 8in to 5ft 8in

Male

Height:

Sex:

60120IL
ELGIN
916 S  LIBERTY STAddress:

Juarez, Saul Jacket: 27507 A SSN:

RightHand Preference:ElginCity of Birth:ShavedHair Style:

EnglishPrimary Language:
USCitizenship:MediumComplexion:

SpanishSecond Language:
Tribe:LargeBuild:

Gang Affiliation:
Hate Group:NoGlasses:

Marital Status:

Military Service:No Discernible 
Features

Teeth:

Blood Type:
Military Discharge:Speech:

Religion:

04   High School 
Diploma

School:Voice:

Full BeardBeard:Mustache:

Place of Birth:

NoDNA Collected: DNA Collected Date:

County of Conviction: State Of Conviction:

NoIllegal Alien:

Identifying Clothing:

Scars, Marks, Tattoos
Type Location Scar, Mark or Tattoo Detail Description
Tattoo TAT LF ARM CARTOON "Lost Soul" and character
Tattoo TAT L HND LETTERS / NAMES "AEQVITAS"
Tattoo TAT R HND LETTERS / NAMES "VERITAS"
Tattoo TAT R WRS PATRIOTIC A Mexican Eagle
Tattoo TAT R ARM RELIGIOUS "Only God Can Judge Me" w/ praying hands

School/Employer Information
Relationship School/Employer Name Phone Type Phone

Known Associates
Relationship Name
Parent Garcia, Maria

Associated IDs
Issue Date ID Type Number Issuing State Start Date Expire Date

SID IL44704600 IL
FBI 168611NB4

Nicknames
Entered Date/Time Nickname Type Nickname

Aliases
 Type Alias DOB Race Sex SSN Hair Eyes DL# Height Weight Phone
AKA Juaqrez, Saul
AKA Jualez, Saul

Crime Specialities

Modus Operandi

Known Offender:

   

Print Date/Time:
Login ID:

Elgin Police Department

Global Subject Activity Report

03/04/2020 15:09
wolek_t ORI Number: IL0450600

Detail
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Activity

Address Type Address City State Zip
Current Address Information

Prior Address Information
Address Type Address City State Zip From Date To Date

1346 W MAIN ST ST CHARLES IL 60174
916 S  LIBERTY ST ELGIN IL 60120

Home 916 S  LIBERTY ST ELGIN IL 60120
Home 360 ANN ST 1 SOUTH ELGIN IL 60177

437 HUBBARD AVE ELGIN IL 60123

Contact Information
Date Type Phone Extension
11/14/2019 08:15 Cellular  Mobile (224)402-9533
05/12/2015 16:42 Cellular  Mobile (224)806-4211

Vehicle Information
Vehicle # Role Contact Date Vehicle Type Make Model Vehicle Year Registration Number State
301058 Passenger 01/13/2020 Passenger Car Toyota Camry 2017 BX43353 IL
299140 Owner 11/08/2019 Passenger Car Chevrolet MALIBU 2012 BV86634 IL
253999 Passenger 07/05/2017 Passenger Car Volvo S60 2006 AH41547 IL
253999 Passenger 07/06/2017 Passenger Car Volvo S60 2006 AH41547 IL
253999 Passenger 07/07/2017 Passenger Car Volvo S60 2006 AH41547 IL
246909 Driver 03/03/2017 Passenger Car Chevrolet MALIBU 2008 ZV40891 IL
246833 Driver 03/03/2017 Passenger Car Chevrolet Malibu 2008 ZV40891 IL
242189 Driver 12/09/2016 Passenger Car Chevrolet IMPALA 2000 S728143 IL
214547 Driver 03/30/2016 Passenger Car Unknown Unknown 5728143
182430 Driver 06/01/2015 Passenger Car Dodge Caravan (inc 

Grand)
2006 V191386 IL

Handicap Information
Handicap

   

Print Date/Time:
Login ID:

Elgin Police Department

Global Subject Activity Report

03/04/2020 15:09
wolek_t ORI Number: IL0450600

Detail

Page: 2 of 8
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Type : Arrest

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

05/31/2015 13:13 15900 Arrest IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-303-A,Driving with 
suspended/revoked drivers license - 
Class A
FTA Fee,FTA Fee

07/24/2015 02:09 16352 Arrest IL0450600
Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/12-3.2-A-1,Domestic 
Battery - Bodily Harm - Class A
720 ILCS 5.0/12-3.2-A-2,Domestic 
Battery - Physical Contact - Class A

12/09/2016 04:26 20923 Arrest IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-303-A,Driving with 
suspended/revoked drivers license - 
Class A

03/03/2017 16:15 22748 Arrest IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-303-A,Driving with 
suspended/revoked drivers license - 
Class A

07/05/2017 00:47 23040 Arrest IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-303-A,Driving with 
suspended/revoked drivers license - 
Class A
720 ILCS 5.0/12-30,Violation of an Order 
of Protection -Class A
Warrant In-State,Warrant In-State

09/13/2018 14:36 27148 Arrest IL0450600
Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/21-1-A-1,Criminal Damage 
to Property - <$300 - Class A
FTA Fee,FTA Fee
FTA Fee,FTA Fee
FTA Fee,FTA Fee
720 ILCS 5.0/12-3.4-A-2,Violation of 
Order of Protection - Class A 
Warrant In-State,Warrant In-State
Warrant In-State,Warrant In-State

12/22/2018 21:30 27991 Arrest IL0450600
Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/21-1-A-1,Criminal Damage 
to Property - <$300 - Class A
FTA Fee,FTA Fee
FTA Fee,FTA Fee
720 ILCS 5.0/12-3.4-A-2,Violation of 
Order of Protection - Class A 

   

Print Date/Time:
Login ID:

Elgin Police Department

Global Subject Activity Report

03/04/2020 15:09
wolek_t ORI Number: IL0450600

Detail
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Type : Booking

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

05/31/2015 13:35 2015-00002004 Booking IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-303-A,Driving with 
suspended/revoked drivers license - 
Class A
FTA Fee,FTA Fee

07/24/2015 02:34 2015-00002657 Booking IL0450600
Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/12-3.2-A-1,Domestic 
Battery - Bodily Harm - Class A
720 ILCS 5.0/12-3.2-A-2,Domestic 
Battery - Physical Contact - Class A

12/09/2016 04:54 2016-00004381 Booking IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-303-A,Driving with 
suspended/revoked drivers license - 
Class A

03/03/2017 17:01 2017-00000830 Booking IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-303-A,Driving with 
suspended/revoked drivers license - 
Class A

07/05/2017 01:17 2017-00002349 Booking IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-303-A,Driving with 
suspended/revoked drivers license - 
Class A
720 ILCS 5.0/12-30,Violation of an Order 
of Protection -Class A
Warrant In-State,Warrant In-State

09/13/2018 15:15 2018-00002699 Booking IL0450600
Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/21-1-A-1,Criminal Damage 
to Property - <$300 - Class A
FTA Fee,FTA Fee
FTA Fee,FTA Fee
FTA Fee,FTA Fee
720 ILCS 5.0/12-3.4-A-2,Violation of 
Order of Protection - Class A 
Warrant In-State,Warrant In-State
Warrant In-State,Warrant In-State

12/22/2018 22:03 2018-00003661 Booking IL0450600
Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/21-1-A-1,Criminal Damage 
to Property - <$300 - Class A
FTA Fee,FTA Fee
FTA Fee,FTA Fee
720 ILCS 5.0/12-3.4-A-2,Violation of 
Order of Protection - Class A 

Type : Case

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

01/26/2013 10:16 2013-00004658 Subject Type : Other Person, Incident 
Type : Domestic Battery

IL0450600

Charge(s):
06/17/2013 09:54 2013-00033398 Subject Type : Suspect/Offender, 

Incident Type : Telephone Threat
IL0450600

   

Print Date/Time:
Login ID:

Elgin Police Department

Global Subject Activity Report

03/04/2020 15:09
wolek_t ORI Number: IL0450600

Detail

Page: 4 of 8
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Charge(s):
720 ILCS 135.0/1-1-2,Disorderly Conduct 
- Telephone Threats -Class B

05/12/2015 08:22 2015-00026808 Subject Type : Suspect/Offender, 
Incident Type : Violation Order of 
Protection

IL0450600

Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/12-30,Violation of an Order 
of Protection -Class A

05/31/2015 12:52 2015-00031203 Subject Type : Witness, Incident Type : 
Battery

IL0450600

Charge(s):
05/31/2015 13:29 2015-00031211 Subject Type : Suspect/Offender, 

Incident Type : Assist Other Agency
IL0450600

Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-303-A,Driving with 
suspended/revoked drivers license - 
Class A

07/24/2015 00:54 2015-00043331 Subject Type : Suspect/Offender, 
Incident Type : Domestic Battery

IL0450600

Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/12-3.2-A-1,Domestic 
Battery - Bodily Harm - Class A
720 ILCS 5.0/12-3.2-A-2,Domestic 
Battery - Physical Contact - Class A

03/29/2016 19:52 2016-00022892 Subject Type : Other Person, Incident 
Type : Accident - Property Damage

IL0450600

Charge(s):
12/09/2016 04:26 2016-00089867 Subject Type: Suspect/Offender, Incident 

Type: DWLS / DWLR
IL0450600

Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-303-A,Driving with 
suspended/revoked drivers license - 
Class A

03/03/2017 16:01 2017-00016676 Subject Type: Suspect/Offender, Incident 
Type: Domestic Battery

IL0450600

Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/12-3.2-A-2,Domestic 
Battery - Physical Contact - Class A
625 ILCS 5.0/6-303-A,Driving with 
suspended/revoked drivers license - 
Class A

03/04/2017 23:14 2017-00016986 Subject Type: Suspect/Offender, Incident 
Type: Burglary - Residential

IL0450600

Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/19-3,Residential Burglary -
Class 1

07/05/2017 00:38 2017-00048371 Subject Type :Suspect Offender, Incident 
Type: Domestic Battery

IL0450600

Charge(s):
09/13/2018 13:47 2018-00061243 Subject Type: Suspect/Offender, Incident 

Type: Criminal Damage to Property
IL0450600

Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/21-1-A-1,Criminal Damage 
to Property - <$300 - Class A

11/19/2018 15:57 2018-00076909 Subject Type: Suspect/Offender, Incident 
Type: Theft

IL0450600

Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/16-1-A-4-A,Theft - Obtains 
control over stolen property/Intends to 
deprive - Under $500 - Class A

12/22/2018 21:30 2018-00083901 Subject Type: Suspect/Offender, Incident 
Type: Domestic Disturbance

IL0450600
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Charge(s):
11/08/2019 06:44 2019-00073463 Subject Type: Suspect/Offender, Incident 

Type: Domestic Battery
IL0450600

Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/12-3.2-A-1,Domestic 
Battery - Bodily Harm - Class A
720 ILCS 5.0/12-3.2-A-2,Domestic 
Battery - Physical Contact - Class A

11/23/2019 11:54 2019-00076697 Subject Type: Suspect/Offender, Incident 
Type: Criminal Sexual Assault

IL0450600

Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/11-1.20-A-1,Criminal 
Sexual Assault - force/threat of force 
(Class 1)

01/13/2020 00:58 2020-00002395 Subject Type: Other Person, Incident 
Type: DUI

IL0450600

Charge(s):
01/23/2020 13:11 2020-00004465 Subject Type: Suspect/Offender, Incident 

Type: Harassment Thru Electronic 
Comms

IL0450600

Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/26.5-3-A-1*,Harassment 
through electronic communications - 
Class 4

Type : Field Investigation

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

09/19/2010 23:47 410 Contact Type: In Person IL0450600
Charge(s):

Type : Incident

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

01/26/2013 10:16 2013-00004658 Incident Type : Domestic Battery, Role : 
Suspect

IL0450600

Charge(s):
05/31/2015 12:52 2015-00031203 Incident Type : Battery, Role : 

Complainant
IL0450600

Charge(s):
05/31/2015 13:29 2015-00031211 Incident Type : Warrant Service, Role : 

Complainant
IL0450600

Charge(s):
07/24/2015 00:54 2015-00043331 Incident Type : Domestic Disturbance, 

Role : Complainant
IL0450600

Charge(s):
03/03/2017 16:01 2017-00016676 Incident Type : Domestic Battery, Role : 

Complainant
IL0450600

Charge(s):
07/05/2017 00:38 2017-00048371 Incident Type : Domestic Battery, Role : 

Complainant
IL0450600

Charge(s):
09/13/2018 13:47 2018-00061243 Incident Type : Criminal Damage to 

Property, Role : Complainant
IL0450600

Charge(s):
11/29/2018 10:07 2018-00078946 Incident Type : Assist Another Agency, 

Role : Suspect
IL0450600

Charge(s):
12/22/2018 21:30 2018-00083901 Incident Type : Domestic Battery, Role : 

Suspect
IL0450600

Charge(s):
01/13/2020 00:58 2020-00002395 Incident Type : DUI, Role : Complainant IL0450600

Charge(s):
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Type : Property

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

07/05/2017 00:00 Case: 2017-00048371 Property Type: Knife; Property Code(s): 
Prisoner Property

IL0450600

Charge(s):
Type : Tickets & Citations

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

12/09/2016 05:01 S0402-000322 State Citation IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-303-A,Driving with 
suspended/revoked drivers license - 
Class A

03/03/2017 16:45 S0385-000917 State Citation IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-303-A,Driving with 
suspended/revoked drivers license - 
Class A

12/22/2018 00:00 C0199-000578 City Ordinance IL0450600
Charge(s):
10.45.020/A,Unlawful Consumption - 
Possession Of Open Liquor In Public

Type : Vehicle

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

12/09/2016 04:54 242189 Vehicle Type: Passenger Car IL0450600
Charge(s):
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Type : Wants & Warrants

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

06/14/2017 00:00 511045 Warrant No.: 511045, Type: FTA, Status: 
Served, Date: 07/05/2017 05:34:00

IL0450600

Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-303-A,Driving with 
suspended/revoked drivers license - 
Class A

08/18/2017 00:00 511309 Warrant No.: 511309, Type: FTA, Status: 
Served, Date: 09/13/2018 14:30:00

IL0450600

Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/12-3.4-A-2,Violation of 
Order of Protection - Class A 

11/02/2018 00:00 513059 Warrant No.: 513059, Type: FTA, Status: 
Served, Date: 12/22/2018 22:14:00

IL0450600

Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/21-1-A-1,Criminal Damage 
to Property - <$300 - Class A

12/12/2018 00:00 513199 Warrant No.: 513199, Type: FTA, Status: 
Served, Date: 12/22/2018 22:13:00

IL0450600

Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/12-3.4-A-2,Violation of 
Order of Protection - Class A 

02/11/2019 00:00 17cm1852 Warrant No.: 17cm1852, Type: FTA, 
Status: Served, Date: 10/21/2019 
09:29:00

IL0450600

Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/12-3.4-A-2,Violation of 
Order of Protection - Class A 

02/28/2019 00:00 513390 Warrant No.: 513390, Type: FTA, Status: 
Served, Date: 10/21/2019 09:29:00

IL0450600

Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/21-1-A-1,Criminal Damage 
to Property - <$300 - Class A

Total Activity : 54
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IL

Occupation:
County of Origin:Hair Length:

# of Dependents:
HispanicEthnicity:Facial Shape:

Age Range:ILCountry/State of Birth:Appearance:
Physical Characteristics:

S52264087006DL#:
BlackHair:
BrownEyes:

DL State:
Race: Hispanic

01/06/1987DOB:
125.0 lbs.(224)425-1481 Weight:Phone #:
5ft 2in

Male

Height:

Sex:

60120IL
ELGIN
259 BROOK STAddress:

Sanchez, Oscar Jacket: 30037 A SSN:

Hand Preference:City of Birth:Hair Style:

Primary Language:
Citizenship:MediumComplexion:

Second Language:
Tribe:Build:

Gang Affiliation:
Hate Group:Glasses:

Marital Status:
Military Service:Teeth:

Blood Type:
Military Discharge:Speech:

Religion:
School:Voice:
Beard:Mustache:

IllinoisPlace of Birth:

NoDNA Collected: DNA Collected Date:

County of Conviction: State Of Conviction:

NoIllegal Alien:

Identifying Clothing:

Address Type Address City State Zip
Current Address Information

Handicap Information
Handicap

Scars, Marks, Tattoos
Type Location Scar, Mark or Tattoo Detail Description
Tattoo TAT RF ARM OTHER LION 
Tattoo TAT L HND OTHER ROSARY 

School/Employer Information
Relationship School/Employer Name Phone Type Phone

Known Associates
Relationship Name

Associated IDs
Issue Date ID Type Number Issuing State Start Date Expire Date

IR Number 1638388

Nicknames
Entered Date/Time Nickname Type Nickname
05/13/2014 06:09 False or Other Name at Booking Pluto

Aliases
 Type Alias DOB Race Sex SSN Hair Eyes DL# Height Weight Phone

Crime Specialities

Modus Operandi

Known Offender:
Burglary
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Type : Accident

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

09/05/2014 21:55 2014-00056715 Accident Type: unknown - Subject IL0450600
Charge(s):

09/05/2014 21:55 2014-00056715 Accident Type: unknown - Vehicle Owner IL0450600
Charge(s):

Type : Arrest

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

04/23/2004 18:00 015799541 Arrest Type: unknown IL0450600
Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/19-3,Residential Burglary -
Class 1

08/22/2008 00:00 017339731 Arrest Type: unknown IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/6-303-A,Driving with 
suspended/revoked drivers license - 
Class A

10/08/2008 00:00 017383540 Arrest Type: unknown IL0450600
Charge(s):
430 ILCS 65.0/2-A-1,FOID card required 
- Expired FOID -Class A
720 ILCS 5.0/24-1-A-1,Unlawful Use of 
Weapons- Sells, Manufactures, 
Purchases, Possesses - Bludgeon, Metal 
Knuckles, Knife -Class A

Type : Tickets & Citations

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

12/01/2012 17:33 S0278-000154 Written Warning IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/3-414,Expiration of 
Registration

09/05/2013 17:32 S0348-000324 Written Warning IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/11-1204-B,Disobeyed Stop 
Sign -Petty Offense

12/02/2013 00:25 S0382-000294 Written Warning IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/3-414,Expiration of 
Registration

Total Activity : 8

Activity

Prior Address Information
Address Type Address City State Zip From Date To Date
Home 558 GERTRUDE ST ELGIN IL 60123
Home 427 S  LIBERTY ST ELGIN IL 60120
Home 516 VILLA ST ELGIN IL 60120
Home 259 BROOK ST ELGIN IL 60120

Contact Information
Date Type Phone Extension
09/17/2014 16:19 Unknown (224)425-1481

Vehicle Information
Vehicle # Role Contact Date Vehicle Type Make Model Vehicle Year Registration Number State
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IL

Occupation:
County of Origin:Hair Length:

# of Dependents:
HispanicEthnicity:Facial Shape:

Age Range:ILCountry/State of Birth:Appearance:
Physical Characteristics:

S52272088008DL#:
BrownHair:
BrownEyes:

DL State:
Race: Hispanic

01/08/1988DOB:
140.0 lbs.(847)888-2503 Weight:Phone #:
5ft 3in

Male

Height:

Sex:

60123IL
ELGIN
558 GERTRUDE STAddress:

Sanchez, Ruben Jacket: 34977 A SSN:

Hand Preference:City of Birth:Hair Style:

Primary Language:
Citizenship:MediumComplexion:

Second Language:
Tribe:Build:

Gang Affiliation:
Hate Group:Glasses:

Marital Status:
Military Service:Teeth:

Blood Type:
Military Discharge:Speech:

Religion:
School:Voice:
Beard:Mustache:

IllinoisPlace of Birth:

NoDNA Collected: DNA Collected Date:

County of Conviction: State Of Conviction:

NoIllegal Alien:

Identifying Clothing:

Handicap Information
Handicap

Scars, Marks, Tattoos
Type Location Scar, Mark or Tattoo Detail Description

School/Employer Information
Relationship School/Employer Name Phone Type Phone

Known Associates
Relationship Name
Acquaintance Felix Jr, John Anthony, Jr
Acquaintance Juarez, Saul
Acquaintance GERARDO, ALEJANDRO
Acquaintance Ahmed, Zeshan K

Associated IDs
Issue Date ID Type Number Issuing State Start Date Expire Date

IR Number 1802159 IL
SID IL52985470 IL

Nicknames
Entered Date/Time Nickname Type Nickname
05/13/2014 06:09 False or Other Name at Booking Lung

Aliases
 Type Alias DOB Race Sex SSN Hair Eyes DL# Height Weight Phone

Crime Specialities

Modus Operandi

Known Offender:

   

Print Date/Time:
Login ID:

Elgin Police Department

Global Subject Activity Report

03/04/2020 15:12
wolek_t ORI Number: IL0450600

Detail

Page: 1 of 3

SAO-EPD0014



Address Type Address City State Zip
Home 321 GERTRUDE ST ELGIN IL 60123

Current Address Information

Prior Address Information
Address Type Address City State Zip From Date To Date

321 GERTRUDE ST ELGIN IL 60123
Home 321 GERTRUDE ST ELGIN IL 60123

516 VILLA ST B ELGIN IL 60120

Contact Information
Date Type Phone Extension
08/21/2013 12:35 Unknown (847)888-2503

Vehicle Information
Vehicle # Role Contact Date Vehicle Type Make Model Vehicle Year Registration Number State
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Type : Accident

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

08/17/2013 15:49 1346886 Accident Type: unknown - Subject IL0450600
Charge(s):

Type : Arrest

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

01/01/1900 00:00 020000596 Arrest Type: unknown IL0450600
Charge(s):
720 ILCS 550.0/8-E,Unauthorized 
production/possession of cannabis sativa 
plant - >200 Plants -Class 1

07/11/2007 00:00 016948976 Arrest Type: unknown IL0450600
Charge(s):
720 ILCS 5.0/25-5-A-1,Unlawful contact 
with Streetgang Member - Probation 
Condition -Class A

Type : Field Investigation

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

10/14/2009 01:47 697 Contact Type: In Person IL0450600
Charge(s):

Type : Incident

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

11/04/2017 23:19 2017-00078720 Incident Type : Traffic Stop, Role : 
Complainant

IL0450600

Charge(s):
Type : Tickets & Citations

Date Activity Reference Description ORI

08/29/2011 15:32 S0183-000051 State Citation IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/11-601-B,Speeding - Petty 
Offense

08/17/2013 16:26 S0373-000837 State Citation IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/11-901-A,Failure to Yield 
Right-of-Way/Intersection - Petty Offense

10/14/2013 13:58 S0183-001948 State Citation IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/11-605.1-A,Speeding-
Construction Zone

11/04/2017 23:45 S0407-000850 State Citation IL0450600
Charge(s):
625 ILCS 5.0/11-601-B,Speeding - Petty 
Offense

Total Activity : 9

Activity
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